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August 31, 2005

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

Steve Vamos, II1, Esq.

Office of Legal Services

The Ohio Department of Insurance
2100 Stella Court

Columbus, Ohio 43215-1067

Re:  Plan of Reorganization of The Union Central Life Insurance Company
under Sections 3913.25 to 3913.38 of the Ohio Revised Code

Dear Mr. Vamos:

This letter is in reference to the letter dated July 21, 2005 to the Ohio Department
of Insurance from David Westerbeck, General Counsel of The Union Central Life Insurance
Company (“Union Central”) and the letter dated August 10, 2005 to you from Cynthia Shoss, in
connection with the proposed reorganization of Union Central. As you are aware, Union Central
has made several changes to the Policyholder Information Booklet and other materials previousiy
sent to Union Central policyholders. Accordingly, Union Central has sent supplemental
materials regarding the proposed reorganization to the policyholders and has postponed the
special meeting to allow the policyholders to have ample time to consider such supplemental
materials. The purpose of this letter is to supplement the above letters with these supplemental
documents (two copies enclosed) that have been sent to the policyholders. We also enclose
herewith the letters to:

(1) any policyholder who was eligible to vote at the originally scheduled
special meeting but becomes ineligible to vote at the rescheduled special
meeting because such policyholder recently terminated a policy with
Union Central,
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(i) any policyholder who was ineligible to vote at the originally scheduled
special meeting and remains ineligible to vote at the rescheduled special
meeting,

(iii)  any new policyholder who purchased a policy from Union Central after
the date that Union Central determined which policyholders were eligible
to vote at the originally scheduled special meeting, and

(iv)  any policyholder who was ineligible to vote at the originally scheduled
special meeting but becomes eligible to vote at the rescheduled special
meeting by meeting eligibility requirements.

If you have any questions or require any further information, please do not
hesitate to contact me. Union Central reserves the right to supplement this filing as necessary or
appropriate in furtherance of the provisions of Sections 3913.25 to 3913.38 of the Ohio Revised

Code,

Very truly yours,

Enclosures

ce: David Westerbeck, Union Central
Denise Skingle, Jones Day



.~ THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
1876 Waycross Road, Cincinnati, Ohio 45240 .- .

Meeting Date: September 30, 2005

Meeting Time: 10:00 a.m., Eastern Time - :

Meeting Place: Union Central’s home office, 1876 Waycross Road, Cincinnati, Ohio 45240
TdﬂU.nion Ceﬁtrai-lﬁdlicyholdérs: ' C ‘ TR

The special meeting of policyholders (“Union Central Policyholders™) of The Union Central Life
Insurance Company (*Union Central”) originally scheduled for September 1; 2005 has been -
rescheduled to September 30, 2005 (the “Rescheduled Special Meeting”). As-before; the purpose of
the meeting is'to vote on the following: . .. . - o . : '

PROPOSAL:

To approve the Plan of Reorganization (the “Plan”) of Union Central pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 3913.25 through 3913.38 of the Ohio Revised Code and the transactions contemplated by the
Plan, including the formation of Union Central Mutual Holding Company (“UCMHC?”) as a mutual
insurance holding company, the conversion of Union Central from an Ohio mutual insurance company
to an Ohio stock life insurance company, which will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of UCMHC,
the adoption of the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation and Code of Regulations of Union
Central as a stock life insurance company, the merger of UCMHC with and into Ameritas Mutual
Holding Company (which will be renamed UNIFI Mutual Holding Company) and the designation of
the Union Central designees to initially serve as directors of UNIFI Mutual Holding Company and
their initial terms of office, all as more fully described in the Policyholder Information Booklet
previously provided to you and the accompanying Supplement to the Policyholder Information Booklet
(the “Supplement”). ‘

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” THE
PROPOSAL.

A detailed summary of the Plan, together with a copy of the Plan, is provided in the Policyholder
Information Booklet, which is incorporated herein by reference and is supplemented by the
Supplement accompanying this Notice. If you require another copy of the Policyholder Information
Booklet or any of the materials accompanying the Policyholder Information Booklet, please call the
Union Central Reorganization Information Line at 1-800-315-9781, Monday through Friday from 8:00
a.m, to 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time.

Union Central Policyholders who, on the basis of records of Union Central, have owned and continue
to own a Union Central policy since September 30, 2004 and have met other requirements in
accordance with the Ohio Revised Code, the Articles of Incorporation and the Code of Regulations of
Union Central, may vote at the meeting. Each such Union Central Policyholder has only one vote
regardless of the number of policies owned. To approve the Proposal, a majority of the votes cast at



the meeting, in person or by proxy, including by virtue of having voted by telephone or Internet, at the
Rescheduled Special Meeting of Union Central Policyholders must vote FOR the Proposal.

Your vote is important. If you do not plan to attend the meeting in person, please promptly
complete, sign, date and return your blue-striped proxy card for the Rescheduled Special
Meeting in the enclosed envelope. You may also vote by phone or Internet. See “SPECIAL
MEETING—Voting by Phone or Internet” at page 17 in the Policyholder Information Booklet and the
Supplement to the Policyholder Information Booklet. Only votes that are made on the blue-striped
proxies or cast by Internet or telephone with control numbers from such blue-striped proxies
will be counted for the Rescheduled Special Meeting. Accordingly, if you have already submitted
a proxy card or voted by Internet or telephone, you must vote again or your vote will not be
counted. Proxies must be received by 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, on September 29, 2005.

A blue-striped proxy card for the Rescheduled Special Meeting to be used by Union Central
Policyholders who wish to authorize someone else to cast their proxies for them is included with this
mailing. If your blue-striped proxy card is damaged or missing, you may obtain a blue-striped proxy
card by writing Union Central, 1876 Waycross Road, Cincinnati, Ohio 45240, Attention: Proxy
Request. If you have questions about the Reorganization, or want to request a blue-striped proxy card,
call the Reorganization Information line at 1-800-315-9781, Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to
5:00 p.m., Eastern Time.

By Order of the Board of Directors of
The Union Central Life Insurance Company

QO MF uatctd
David F. Westerbeck

Secretary
August 22, 2005



Notice of Rescheduled Public Hearing
to be held by the Ohio Department of Insurance
on the Plan of Reorganization of The Union Central Life Insurance Company

Notice is hereby given that the Ohio Department of Insurance has rescheduled the public
hearing on the proposed Plan of Reorganization (the “Plan”) of The Union Central Life
Insurance Company (“Union Central”) that was originally scheduled for September 27, 2005.
The hearing will now be held on Friday, October 21, 2005 beginning at 10 a.m., at the offices of
the Ohio Department of Insurance, 2100 Stella Court, Columbus Ohio 43215.

The proposed Plan involves the conversion of Union Central into a stock life insurance
company within a mutual insurance holding company structure pursuant to Sections 3913.25 to
3913.38 of the Ohio Revised Code, and the merger of the newly formed mutual insurance
holding company, immediately thereafter, with and into Ameritas Acacia, a Nebraska mutual
insurance holding company. At the hearing, persons claiming to be adversely affected by the
proposed conversion and merger and others wishing to comment thereon may present a position
and offer comments concerning the proposed reorganization, including whether such transactions
are fair and equitable to policyholders and comply with applicable law, or written statements
may be submitted to the Hearing Clerk, at the Department of Insurance at the above address.

The Superintendent of Insurance for the State of Ohio (the “Ohio Superintendent”) may
adjourn the hearing to another time and/or place and may hold additional public hearings on the
proposed Plan in the future. In the event that the Ohio Superintendent determines to adjourn the
hearing to another time and/or place or hold additional public hearings on the proposed Plan,
Union Central will provide notice of the time and place to which the hearing has been adjourned
or the time and place of such additional hearings by causing this information to be published
once each week for two consecutive weeks in a newspaper published and of the largest
circulation in the counties of Cuyahoga, Franklin, Hamilton and Lucas and in the newspaper of
the largest circulatiofl in the state capital of each state of the United States in which Union
Central maintains an office or agency for the solicitation of insurance.



UmionCentral

Supplement to Policyholder Information Booklet, dated July 21 2005
Supplement datéd August 22, 2005

The Union Central Life Insurance Company (“Union Central”) hereby amends and
supplements the Policyholder Information Booklet, dated July 21, 2005 (the *“Policyholder
Information Booklet”), related to the proposed reorganization of Union Central pursuant to the
terms of the Plan of Reorganization (the “Plan”)

The Policyholder Informatlon Booklet 18 bemg amended and supplemented to revise
Union Central’s consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with United States
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) and certain information derived from such
GAAP consolidated financial statements, including the unaudited pro forma GAAP financial
information included in the Policyholder Information Booklet..-During the preparation of the
June 30, 2005 GAAP financial statements, Union Central identified an error in the calculation of
certain reserve items relating to its term life insurance product. The errors were uncovered when
reserve entries were reviewed for its term life insurance product on a stand-alone basis. Union
Central’s management has modified its internal control procedures to avoid these errors in the
future. Union Central’s audited GAAP financial statements, originally included as Exhibit 2 to
the Policyholder Information Booklet Exhibit Volume, have been restated to:reflect a reduction
in the ceded reserve credit and other less significant reserve related items with respect to term
insurance products. The ceded reserve credit is a receivable, or an .asset, on Union Central’s
GAAP balance sheet that represents the portion of policy reserves that have been transferred to
accredited third party reinsurance compames by Umon Central through reinsurance agreements

The following table sets forth the adjustments to GAAP total equlty as of December 31,
2004 -and 2003, respectively, and the adjustments to GAAP net income for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.. Except for the percentage changes, all
amounts are in millions of dollars. Percentage changes in any given year are based on the
difference between the GAAP Restated Equity and the GAAP Reported Equity and the
difference between the-GAAP Restated Net Income and the GAAP Reported Net Income, as
applicable, in such year. B o _

L)

Equity S 2008 - 200
~ Reported Equity 7 $650.9 $609.2
Cumulative Adjustment (234 © (11
Restated Equity %6275 . - $592.1

Percentage Change (3.6%) (2.8%)



Net Income .. 2004 2003 2002

Reported Net Income o sas $32.9 $(25.5)
Adjustmenf o o | (63 Q_Q (2.5)
Restated Net Income $37.2 $253 $(28.0)
Pér;:entage Change ' (14.5%) (23.1%) (9.8%)

Union Central’s restated audited GAAP consolidated financial statements, with the report of
independent auditors, are included in this Supplement (the “Supplement”). Such report of the
independent auditors is unqualified. The management of Union Central has concluded that the
identified errors are isolated and do not reflect a systemic problem with Union Central’s
accounting processes. Please refer to the discussion below of the details of each change to the
Policyholder Information Booklet relating to these GAAP adjustments, including the changes to
the unaudited pro forma financial information for UNIFL. : :

The internal actuarial staff of Union Central discovered the error that resulted in the
above adjustments and. promptly apprised management, which has conferred with Union
Central’s independent auditors concerning the internal control deficiency that led to the error.
Union Central has modified its internal controls to prevent a reoccurrence of this type of error.

These GAAP adjustments have no effect on Union Central’s financial statements
prepared in accordance with statutory accounting principles. The GAAP adjustments also
would not have affected significantly, if at all, any of Union Central’s financial decisions, or
product decisions, or any financial transactions. Union Central and Ameritas Acacia have
agreed that the GAAP adjustments do not constitute a material adverse effect under the Merger
Agreement that would entitle Ameritas Acacia: to terminate the Merger Agreement.
Accordingly, Union Central and- Ameritas Acacia anticipate that the consummation of the
Merger will occur on or before December 31, 2005. ' .

To give Union Central policyholders (“Union Central Policyholders”) additional time to
consider the restated GAAP consolidated financial statements and resulting changes to the
Policyholder Information Booklet included in this Supplement, the special meeting (the “Special
Meeting”) of Union Central Policyholders has been rescheduled (“Rescheduled Special
Meeting”) for September 30, 2005, commencing at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time, at Union
Central’s home office, 1876 Waycross Road, Cincinnati, Ohio 45240. The Superintendent of
Insurance for the State of Ohio has also rescheduled the public hearing on this matter to October
21, 2005 (“Rescheduled Public Hearing”). Accordingly, the Notice of Special Meeting and the
Notice of Public Hearing preceding the Policyholder Information Booklet are hereby replaced
with the Notice of Rescheduled Special Meeting and the Notice of Rescheduled Public Hearing,
respectively, both of which precede this Supplement.




The following changes are hereby made to the Policyholder Information Booklet to
reflect the adjustments made to Union Central’s GAAP consolidated financial statements:

The pro forma financial information in the section entitled, “Unaudited Pro Forma

- U.S. GAAP Combined Consolidated Financial Information,” beginning on page 9

and continuing to page 15 of the Policyholder Information Booklet is replaced in
its entirety with the revised unaudited pro forma financial information set forth in
Attachment 1 hereto. The unaudited UNIFI pro forma ﬁnancial information has
also been updated to reflect the financial results for Union Central and Ameritas

"“Acacia as of and for the six month period ended June 30, 2005. The restated
" unaudited UNIFI pro forma financial information as of and for the three month
_penod ended March 31, 2005 has not been presented therem i

The unaudlted pro fonna GAAP equity of UNIFI referred to in the first bullet
point in the section entitied, “Potential Advantages of the Reorgamzatlon -
Anticipated Eventua]_lmprovement in Financial Strength Ratings,” on page 21 of

" the Policyholder Information Booklet is changed from $1.9 billion to $1.8 billion.

The audited GAAP total equity of Union Central referred to in the first bullet
point in the section entitled, “Potential Advantages of the"Re’organization -

- Anticipated Eventual Improvement in Financial Strength Ratings,” on page 21 of

the Polzcyholder Informatzon Booklet is changed from $651 rmlhon to $627
mllhon S

The audited GAAP cons'olidated financial statements of Union Central for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 with the report of independent auditors
set forth in Exhibit 2 to the Policyholder Information Booklet Exhibit Volume are
replaced in their entirety with the restated audited GAAP consolidated financial
statements of Union Central for the years ended’ December 31, 2003 and 2004

* with report of independent auditors set forth in ' Attachment 2 hereto. In addition,

results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2002 has been added to the
audited consolidated statements of income and audited consolidated statements of
_cash flows included in Attachment 2.

* ‘The $30 million termination fee expressed as a percentage of Union Central’s
" consolidated - GAAP net worth referred to in the section entitled, “The Merger

Agreement —~ Costs and Expenses; Termination Feé,” on page 52 of the

Polzcyholder ]nformatton Booklet is changed from 4 9% to 5. 1%

The following changes are hereby made to the Policyholder Informatlon Booklet to
reflect the changes in meeting dates and procedures for votmg at the Rescheduled Special

Meetmg

&

All references to the Special Meeting originally scheduled for September 1, 2005
- in the Policyholdér Information Booklet and the Questions and Answers that were

included with the Policyholder Information Booklet (“Questions and Answers”)
are changed to refer to the Rescheduled Special Meeting scheduled for September



30, 2005 and references to the public hearing originally scheduled for September
27, 2005 in the Policyholder Information Booklet are changed to refer to the
Rescheduled Public Hearing scheduled for October 21, 2005.

. All references to a proxy card in the Policyholder Information Booklet and in the
Questions and Answers are changed to refer to the blue-striped proxy card for the
Rescheduled Special Meeting included with this Supplement.

ST

. References to the August 31, 2004 cut-off date for determining eligible voting
Union Central Policyholders in the third bullet point in the section entitled,
“Special Meeting ~ Voting Union Central Policyholders,” on page 16 of the
Policyholder Information Booklet and in the third bullet point under the question,
“Who gets to vote on the Reorganization,” on page 6 of the Questions and
Answers are changed to September 30, 2004,

; . The first sentence in the section entitled, “Special Meeting — Voting by Proxy;
1‘ Revocation of Proxies,” on page 17 of the Policyholder Information Booklet is
replaced with the following sentences: “For all Voting Union Central
Policyholders, a blue-striped proxy card exclusively for use at the Rescheduled
Special Meeting accompanies this Supplement. Only votes that are made on the
blue-striped proxies or cast by Internet or telephone with control numbers from
such blue-striped proxy card will be counted for the Rescheduled Special
Meeting. Accordingly, if you have already submitted a proxy card or voted by
Internet or telephone, you must vote again pursuant to the procedures described in
the Policyholder Information Booklet previously provided to you (as updated by
this Supplement) and the blue-striped proxy card for your vote to count for the
Rescheduled Special Meeting.

. Reference to the August 31, 2005 cut-off date for submitting votes by proxy,
Internet or Telephone in the last sentence in the section entitled, “Special Meeting
— Voting by Phone or Internet,” on page 17 of the Policyholder Information
Booklet is changed to September 29, 2005.

. Reference to an August 31, 2005 special meeting date of Ameritas Acacia
members in subpoint.(ii) in the section entitled, “Regulatory Matters — Nebraska
Approval Order,” on page 57 of the Policyholder Information Booklet shall be
changed to September 29, 2005. ,

The fo]loWing changes are hereby rhade to the P.olicyh'older Information Booklet to
reflect new developments since July 21, 2003: -

o The phrase in the second sentence in the second paragraph of the section entitled,
“United States Federal Income Tax Consequences — Scope of Summary,” on page 56
of the Policyholder Information Booklet relating to the expected receipt of a private
letter ruling from the IRS is changed to reflect the receipt of such private letter ruling:
“Union Central has received a private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service
(the “IRS Ruling”) confirming the tax consequences of the Reorganization to the

L | 4
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Union Central Policyholders and to Union Central, UCMHC, Ameritas Acacia and
AHC...” :

o The second bullet point entitled, “Costs of Reorganization,” on page 24 of the
Policyholder Information Booklet is replaced in its entirely with the following:

"Costs of Reorganization. Outside legal, financial, accounting, actuarial, printing,
and other fees and expenses, including the fees and costs of experts hired by the
Ohioc and New York Departments of Insurance for which Union Central is
responsible, are anticipated to be significant and are estimated at approximately
$11.0 million after-tax on both a statutory accounting and GAAP basis. A
substantial portion of these costs have already been incurred. In addition, Union
Central offered early retirement packages to 84 of its employees which will
become effective only if the Reorganization is consummated. The deadline for
accepting the early retirement package offer has expired, and as of the expiration
date, 69 employees have accepted. If the Reorganization is consummated, the
total after-tax cost to Union Central of the early retirement packages will be
approximately $6.8 million on both a statutory accounting and GAAP basis.”

In addition:

* All references throughout the Policyholder Information Booklet to the opinions of
Morgan Stanley and Milliman are unchanged as both firms have confirmed that
the GAAP adjustments do not affect their fairness opinions, each dated July 20,
2005, included as Exhibit 4 and Exhibit 5, respectively, of the Policyholder
- Information Booklet Exhibit Volume.

¢ Union Central’s ‘A minus’ (Excellent) financial strength rating from A.M. Best

Company, Inc. (“A.M. Best”) and ‘A minus’ (Strong) financial strength rating

from Standard & Poor’s (*S&P”) as disclosed in the Policyholder Information

Booklet remain unchanged. Union Central has received confirmation from A.M.

i Best and S&P that the GAAP adjustments will not affect Union Central’s
| financial strength ratings.

This Supplement constitutes a part of the Policyholder Information Booklet and should be
read in conjunction with the Policyholder Information Booklet and the accompanying Union
Central President’s Letter. If you require another copy of the Policyholder Information
Booklet, the Policyholder Information Booklet Exhibit Volume or the Questions and
Answers or have any questions or need assistance, please call our Reorganization
Information Line at 1-800-315-9781.
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ATTACHMENTS TO
THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
SUPPLEMENT TO THE POLICYHOLDER INFORMATION BOOKLET




Attachment 1

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA U.S. GAAP. COMBINED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL *
INFORMATION

The following unaudited pro forma U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) combined condensed consolidated financial information has been prepared to give
effect to the Reorganization, using the pooling of interests method of accounting.: In the pooling
of interests method, the recorded assets and liabilities of the companies are carried forward to the
combined entity at their recorded amounts and the reported income of the companies is
combined. - e o

The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2005
combines the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of Ameritas Acacia and the unaudited
consolidated balance sheet of Union Central as of June 30, 2005. The unaudited pro forma
combined consolidated statements of income combine the historical consolidated statements of
income of Ameritas Acacia and Union Central for the six month period ended June 30, 2005-and
the historical audited consolidated statements of income each of the years in'the three year period
ended December 31, 2004. The audited GAAP balance sheet of Union Central as of December
31, 2003 and 2004 and the audited GAAP statements of income of Union Central for the three
year period ended December 31, 2004 have been restated to reflect a reduction in the ceded
reserve credit and other less significant reserve related items with respect to term insurance
products. The ceded reserve credit is a receivable, or an asset, on Union Central’s GAAP
balance sheet that represents the portion of policy reserves that have been transferred to
accredited third party reinsurance companies by Union Central through reinsurance agreements.
The condensed balance sheet and income statement format is consistent with historical financial
presentations included the Union Central's Annual Policyholders' Report.

This unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information is presented for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the financial position or results of
operations that would have actually been reported had the Reorganization occurred at the
beginning of the periods presented, nor is it necessarily indicative of future financial position or
results of operations. The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information as
of and for the periods presented may have been different had the companies actually been
consolidated as of or during those periods due to, among other factors, possible revenue
enhancements, expense efficiencies and integration costs. The unaudited pro forma combined
consolidated financial statements are based upon the respective historical consolidated financial
statements of Ameritas Acacia and Union Central and should be read in conjunction with the
respective historical audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto of Union
Central (Attachment 2 to the Supplement to the Policyholder Information Booklet (the
“Supplement”)) and of Ameritas Acacia (Exhibit 3 in the Exhibit Volume to the Policyholder
Information Booklet), as well as the accompanying notes to these unaudited pro forma combined
consolidated financial statements.

1-1




Balance Sheet

'.Asscts
* Fixed income securmes

Equity securities
Loans

Other invested assets

1< Total invested assets
Other general account assets

~ Total general acmunt assets
_Separate acco;xnthxscts -
. Total Assets

Liabilities and Equlty

Future policy bencfits and éla:ms
' Other general account liabilities

.- Total general-account tiabilities .

Separate account liabilities
Totat Liabilities :

Minority interest in subsidiary

Equity
“Total Liabilities and Equity

Pro Forma Unaudited U.S. GAAP Combined Balance Sheet (in thousands)

) As of June 30, 2005 ) . Pro Forma Combined
Amerltas Acsciu Union Central UNIFI
$2,975,277 $3,566,056 $ 6,541,333
174,356 20,947 195,303
1,614,937 702,081 2,317,018
155,202 117,987 273,189
4919772 . 4,407,071 - 19,326,843
677,151 . 772,794 1,449,945
5,596,923 5,179,865 10,776,788
2,655,167 . 2,113,814 4,768,981
$8,252,000 ~$7,293,679 "$15,545,769
$3,161,688 " $4,185388 $7,347,076
1,161,346 ' 353937 1,514,583
433,034 4,538,625 8,861,659
2,655,167 2,113,814 4,768,981
6,978,200 6,652,439 13,630,640
- 61,542 . - 61,542
1,212,347 641 240 1,893,587
$8,252,000 £7,293,679 £15,545,769
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Pro Forma Unaudited U.S. GAAP Combined Statements of Income (in thousands) -~

For the Six Months:.
Ended June 38, 2005: = - Pyro Forma
Combined
Ameritas Acacia Union Central - - - UNIFI
Statements of Income
Revenue . .
Insurance revenue $299,371 $109,722 $405,093
Net investment income = 134,625 112,974 247,599
Net realized gains on investments 12,277 8,183 - . 20,460
Other revenue -. "87,808 19,748 107,556
Total Revenues 534,081 250,627 784,708
Benefits and Expenses
Benefits paid or credited to
policyowners or beneficiaries 253,477 136,818 390,295
Underwriting, acquisition and other ‘
expenses 214,410 98,016 312,426
Total Benefits and Expenses .- 467,887 234,834 702,721
Income before federal income tax
and minority interest in eamings
of subsidiary 66,194 15,793 81,987
Federal incomé tax expense 25,548 6,021 31,569
Income before minority interest in ] _
earnings of subsidiary - -'40,646 9,772 . 50,418
Minority interest in earnings of
subsidiary (3,355) - (3,355)
Net Income $37,291 $9,772 $ 47,063




Pro Forma Unaudited U.S. GAAP Combined Statements of Income (in thousands) - . -

Statements of Income
Revenue
Insurance revenue
Net investment income
Net realized gains on investments
Other revenue

Total Revenues

Benefits and Expenses
Benefits paid or credited to
policyowners or beneficiaries
Underwriting, acquisition and other
expenses .
Total Benefits and Expenses

Income before federal income tax and
minority interest in earnings of
subsidiary

Federal income tax expense

Income before minority interest in
earnings of subsidiary
Minority interest in earnings of
subsidiary
Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle

Net Income

For the Twelve Months
Ended December 31, 2004 Pro Forma Combined
Ameritas Acacia Union Central UNIF]
Restated Restated
§ 593,324 $207,798 $ 801,122
272,129 242,634 514,763
74,203 - 7910 82,113 -
164,189 32,353 196,542 .
1,103,345 490,695 1,594,540
503,739 274,004 771,743
401,754 166,699 568,453
905,493 440,703 1,345,196
198,352 49,992 248,344
62,758 12,753 75,511
135,594 37,239 172,833
(5,108) . (5,108)
130,486 37,239 167,725
(606) - (606)
$ 129,880 $37.239 $ 167,119
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Statements of Income
Revenue
Insurance revenué
Net investment income
Net realized gains (losses) on
investments
Other revenue

Total Revenues

Benefits and Expenses
Benefits paid or credited to
policyowners or bencficiaries
Underwriting, acquisition and other
expenses
Total Benefits and Expenses

Income before federal income tax and
minority interest in camings of
subsidiary

Federal income tax expense
Income before minority interest in
earnings of subsidiary

Minority iriterest in earnings of
subsidiary

..Net Income

Pro Forma Unaudited U.S: GAAP Combined Statements of Income (in thousands) .- =

For the Twelve Months
Ended December 31, 2003 Pro Forma Combined
Ameritas Acacia Union Central ONIFI
"o Restatetl Restated
$590,021 $212,430 $ 802,451
259,249 252,776 512,025
(24,156) 129,151 . 4995
. 151,394 34,093 185,487
976,508 " 528450 1,504,058
511,631 290,490 . 802,121
375,152 " 200,740 T s15.892
886,783 391,230 1,378,013
80,725 37,220 - 126,045
33,868 11,962 45830
55,857 25,258 CORLIS
(5.781) . (5,781)
3 50,076 $25,258 $ 75,334




Pro Forma Unaudited U.S. GAAP Combined Statements of Income (in thousands)

For the Twelve Months

Ended December 31, 2002 Pro Formz Combined
Ameritas Acacia Union Central UNIF1
- Restated Restated
Statements of Income .
Revenue
Insurance revenue $570,682 $£225817 ' § 806,499
Net investment income 266,734 246,559 513,293
Net reatized losses on investments . (15,57 (42,233) (57,805)
Other revenue - 148,201 32,208 180,409
Total Revenues 970,045 472,351 1,442,39¢
Benefits and Expenses
Benefits paid or credited to :
policyowners or beneficiaries 506,249 323,102 ' 829,351
Underwriting, acquisition and other
expenses 389,913 195,048 - 584,961
" Total benefits and expenses 896,162 518,150 1,414,312
Income (loss) before federal income
tax and minority interest in
earnings of subsidiary 73,883 (45,799) 28,084
‘Federal income tax expense (benefit) 23,403 (17,838) 5,565
Income (loss) before minority interest
in earnings of subsidiary 50,480 {27,961) 22,519
Minority interest in eamnings of
subsidiary T ' 37 - 37
Net Income (Loss) - - $ 50,517 - $ (27,961) $§ 22,556
1-6




Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma U.S. GAAP Combined Consolidated Financial Statements

\, 1. ‘The Consolidated Financial Statements were prepéred: in éccordé,hce with United States
~generally accepted accounting principals. - e

2. The consolidated financial information was prepared under the pooling of interests
method of accounting. Therefore, the historical balance sheets and income statements of
the two entities were combined as stated.

3. Certain balance sheet and income statement line items were combined for the financial
statement presentation; therefore, certain line items presented herein may not be identical
to the corresponding line items in the historical audited consolidated financial statements.
The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the respective historical audited consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto of Union Central and Ameritas Acacia included as Attachment 2 to the
Supplement and Exhibit 3 in the Policyholder Information Booklet Exhibit Volume,
respectively.

4. It was assumed the merger would occur in the fourth quarter of 2005 and possible
revenue enhancements, expense efficiencies and all integration costs have not been
incorporated in the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial statements
included herein. Specifically:

s The anticipated transaction costs were not incorporated into the unaudited pro
forma combined consolidated financial statements for the periods ending
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002. However, the transaction costs, net of tax of
$8.1 million and $11.9 million were included in the “Underwriting, acquisition
and other expenses” line of the June 30, 2005 income statements of Ameritas
Acacia and Union Central, respectively. The $11.9 million transaction costs of
Union Central is comprised of $6.8 million of expenses related to the early
retirement packages accepted by 69 Union Central employees and $5.1 million of
adviser and other fees and expenses (representing the allocable portion of the
$11.0 million total estimated adviser and other fees and expenses in connection
with the Reorganization for the six month period). See ‘“Costs of
Reorganization, ” under the first bullet point on page 5 of the Supplement.

o The anticipated cost savings expected were not incorporated into the unaudited
pro forma combined consolidated financial statements included herein.

¢ The anticipated increases in sales were not incorporated into the unaudited pro
forma combined consolidated financial statements included herein.

¢ There were no intercompany transactions, and therefore, no eliminating entries
posted in the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial statements
included herein.




T e Bt

5. The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial statements included herein are
presented for illustrative purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of the financial
position or results of the operations’ that would have actually been reported had the
Reorganization occurred at the beginning: of the periods' presented, nor is it necessarily
indicative of future financial position or results of operations.

s
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 Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors of
The Union Central Life Insurance Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The, Union Central Life Insurance. Company and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of Union Central Mortgage Funding,. Inc, a wholly-owned
subsidiary, which statements reflect 2.8% and 12.5% of total consolidated pre-tax income for the years ended 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been' furnished to us, and our opinion,
ingofar as it relates to the amounts included for Union Central Mortgage Funding, Inc is based solely on the report of other
auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Umted States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company ]
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial staternents, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. - :

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of The Union Central Life Insurance Company and subsidiaries at

December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for-each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

February 8, 2005, except the restatement described
in Note 1 for which the date is August 17, 2005.
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THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

'~ CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

ASSETS

Investments:

Fixed maturities available- for-sale at fair value (amortlzed cost;
2004 - $3,365,283 and 2003 $3 365 149)

Other fixed maturities

Equity securities avallable-for-sa“le at falr value
(cost: 2004 - $16,681 and 2003 $59 810)

Other equity securities -

Cash and short-term investments = _ -

Other invested assets .

Mortgage loans held-for-investment

Mortgage loans held-for-sale

Amounts receivable under repurchase agreement

Real estate .

Policy loans
Total investments

Accrued investment income
Deferred policy acqulsmon costs
Property, plant and equipment, at cost, less accumiulated
depreciation (2004 - $94,522 and 2003 - $86,040)
Deferred federal income tax asset
Federal income tax recoverable
Receivable for secunnes
Other assets.
Separate account assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Policy liabitities:
Future policy benefits
Deposit funds
Policy and contract claims
Policyholders' dividends
Total policy liabilities
Deferred revenue
Payable for securities
Warehouse line of credit
Other liabilities
Federal income tax payable
Deferred federal income tax liability
Surplus notes payable
Obligation under repurchase agreement
Separate account liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity:
Policyholders' equity
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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December 31,
2004 — 2003
Restated Restated
§ 3,448,772 § -3,448932
© 13,236 ¢ 24 260
C17,475 7 63 0‘77
4,135 - 13,803
15,840 5,958
32,647 -32,926
512,292 508,655
107,020 18,996
71,730 . 36,457
. 10,056 11,272
__142,61] 144,037
. 4,375,814 4,308,373
47,646 - 46,126
370,109 356,495
37,871 - 41,904
- 288
4,972 --
105,709 7,904
- 374,965 273,883
— 2,095,848 ___ 1,809,545
§ 741293 § 6844518
$ 4,036,163 § 4,010,705
114,896 119,116
28,982 37,126
8,398 9,152
4,188,439 4,176,099
50,990 60,902
107,086 185
84,565 18,970
133,239 99,767
- 895
4,422 -
49,810 49,801
71,041 36,257
2,095,848 1,809,545
6,785,440 6,252,421
627,109 589,870
385 2,227
627,494 592,097
i 7412934 $ 6844518




THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME -
(in thousands)

December 31,
_ 2004 2003 2002
REVENUE ‘ Restated Restated Restated

Insurance revenue: :

Traditional insurance premiums $ 113,805 $ 117,285 § 149,842

Universal life policy charges 61,657 63,291 58,832

Annuities - s ' 32,336 31,854 - 27,143
Net investment income o 242,634 252,776 246,559
Net realizéd gains (losses) on investments 7,910 ~ 29,151 . (42,233)
Fee income 23,969 24,885 22,120
Other . ' ' B384 9208 - 10,088

Total revenue 490,695 528,450 472,351

BENEFITS AND EXPENSES . oo o :

Benefits 114,654 .. 112,058 141,357
Increase in reserves for future policy benefits 12,680 14,053 ‘12,096
Interest 2xpense: - R

Universal life : 63,438 72,754 76,437

Investment products 71,603 77,885 79,359
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expense 166,699 200,740 195,048
Policyholders’ dividends 11.629 13.740 13,853

Total benefits and expenses 440,703 - __.491,230 . 518,150
Income (loss) before federal income tax expense (benefit) 49,992 37,220 (45,799)
Federal income tax expense (benefit) 12,753 11,962 {17.838)

$_(27.961)

Net Income (Loss) § 37239 § 25258

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(in. thousands)

Balance at January 1,2002, as
previously reported-

Prior peﬁod adjustments,.(sée Note 1} " .
Balance at January 1, 2002, as restated '

Net loss

Unrealized gains on securities,
net of tax and reclassification
adjustment

Minimum pension liability
adjustinent

Comprehensive income -

Balance at December 31, 2]]02 , S restated '

Net income o

Unrealized losses on securitics,
net-of tax and reclassification
adjustment

Minimum pension liability
adjustment

Comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2003, as restated

Net income

Unrealized gains on securities,
net of tax and reclassification
adjustment

Minimum pension liability
adjustment

Comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2004 , as restated

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

_ Accumulated

Other

- Comprehensive

Income

$ (20,020)

—[(20,020)

35,287

(6,879)

— 8,388

(3,090)

(3,071)

—2:227

789

(2,631)
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Policyholders'
Equity Total
$ 599,640 $ 579,620
7.067 . _(1.06T).
292,573 72,353
(27,961) (27,961)
35,287
. (6,879)
| 447
25,258 25,258
(3,090)
(.071)
19,097
289,870 292,097
37.239 37,239
789
(2.631)
35397
3 627109 5627494




THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIAR]ES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS.

(in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net mcome (loss}

: Ad}ustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used. in) operating activities:

Interest credited to universal life policies
Interest credited to investment products
Accrual of discounts on investments, net
Net realized (gains) losses on mvestments
Depreciation:-

- Amortization of deferred policy acqmsmon costs

- Amortization of deferred revenue -
Policy acquisition cost deferred
Revenue deferred _
Deferred federal income tax expense (benefit)
Cost of mortgage loans held for sale, net

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accrued investment income

-Receivable for securities
Other (assets) liabilities
Amounts receivable under repurchase agreement
Policy liabilities
Payable for securities
Obligation under repurchase agreement
Other items, net

Cash Provided by (Used in) Operaﬁng'Activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Costs of investments acquired
Proceeds from sale, maturity or repayment of investments
(Increase) decrease in policy loans
Purchases of property and equipment, net

Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from universal life and investment contracts
Withdrawals from universal life and investment contracts
Net proceeds from the issuance of line of credit debt -
Reverse repurchase agreements

‘ Cgsh P;oiflded by (_Used in) Finanéing Ac'tivi'ﬂes

Increase (decrease) in cash and short term investments

Cash and short term investments at beginning of year
Cash and short term mvestments at end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid (refunded) during the year for federal i mcome taxes

Cash paid during the year for interest on surplus notes

Cash paid during the year for interest on line of credit

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
Restated Restated Restated
$ 37239 § 25258 § (21961)
63438 72,754 76,437
71,603 77,885 79,359
8,685 10,441 2,135
(7.910) - (29,151) 42233
. 8,482 10,580 - - 7:189
52,832 69,708 63,892
(15.341) (10,558) (20,685)
(62,462) (57,941) (66,648)
5,429 2,873 10,384
5,619 1,612 (4,476)
(85,442) (18,899) -
(1,520) (863) (1,117)
(97,805) (964) 6,680
(101,083) (76,734) (60,656)
(35,273) (36,457) -~
72,842 8,038 (3,606)
106,901 (140,748) 135,881
34,784 36,257 -
4,396 (2.006) (8,886)
65.414 (58.915) 230,155
(2,457,237)  (3,534,371)  (2,955,450)
2,510,121 3,500,802 2,583,590
1,426 Can 2,162
(4.449) (4,355 7.059
49,861 (37.935) (376.757)
560,266 654,871 824,479
(755.809)  -(702,495) (579,104)
65,595 18,970 .
24,555 - -
(105393} ___(28.654) _ 245375
9,882 -(125,504) 98,773
5,958 131,462 32,689
$ 15840 § 5958 $ 131462
$ 11342 $ (6404) § (6,099
$ 4100 $ 4100 S$ 4,100
$ 1387 § 1069 8 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOL]DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 -NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Organization

The accoimpanying consolidated financial statéments have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles genera
accepted in the United States (GAAP) and ‘include the accounts of The Union Central Life Insurance’ Comipany. {Uni
Central) and the following subsidiaries: Summit Investment Partners, Inc., wholly-owned, a registered investment advis
Carillon Investments, Inc., wholly-owned, a registered broker-dealer that offers investment products and related servis
through its registered representatlves Payday of America, LLC, wholly-owned, a payroll company(as detailed below, Uni
Central sold the assets of Payday of America, LLC in 2004); Family Enterprise Institute, Inc., wholly-owned; -a natio:
membership organization for family business owners; PRBA, Inc., wholly-owned the holding coinpany of a pensi
administration company; Summit Investment Parmers, LLC, wholly—owned a reglstered investment ‘advisor and Unj
Central Mortgage Funding, Inc, a mortgage banking business. Fee based revenues of the consohdated subsidiaries v
included in “Fee Income” in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The Company also consolidated the following mut
funds due to its level of ownership in these funds: the Summit Apex High Yield Bond Fund; the Summit Apex TSI Fu
the Summit Pinnacle Lehman Aggregate Bond Index Portfolio and the Summit Apex EAFE International Index Fund. 1
consolidated company will be referred to as “the Company”. The holdings of the consolidated Summit mutual funds
reported at fair value in “Other fixed meturities” and “Other equity securities” in the Balance Sheets. All s1gmﬁc
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanymg consolidated fmanc:al statéments.
addition, Summit Mutual Funds, Inc., a reglstered investment company, is an investment affiliate of Union. Central

On January 1, 2004, the Company adopted Statement of Position 03-1 "Accounting and Reportmg by Insurance Enterpni
for Certain Nontraditional Long-Duration Contracts and for Separate Accounts“ The impact of adoptlon_ was lmmate_nal

The Company will adopt FASB Interpretatlon No, 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” ("FI'N 46") on Jam]an
2005. The impact of adoption is not ant1c1pated to be material. In 1996, the Company created a collateralized b
obligation through the formation of a trust in which the Company is the primary beneficiary. The trust issued debt securi
to lenders. As of December 31, 2004, $70,300,000 of debt securities was outstanding. Upon the adoption of FIN 46,
Company anticipates consolidation of the collateralized bond obligation will'be required. The maximum exposure to' los:
the Company as a result of the activities of the collateralized bond obligation was $43,400,000 as of De_cember 3 1, 2004.

During 2004, the Company sold Family Enterprise Institute, Inc., a wholly-owned submdmry A $1,600 aﬂet-tax gam \
recorded as a result of the sale. ; R

During 2004 the Company c0mp1eted the sale of Payday of America, LLC’s assets to Paycor Inc in exchange for comn
stock of Paycor, Inc. The net after-tax impact from recording the sale was a reduction ir*net income of $3,467,000.
operating activities of Payday of America, LLC had ceased as of December 31, 2004, . : .

During 2002, the Company established Union Central Mortgage Fundmg, Inc., a who]Iy-owned consolldated subsndn.
which was formed to originate, sell and service commercial mortgage loans.

The Company prov1des a wide spectrum of ﬁnancml products and related services for the buneﬁt of mdmdual group
pensmn policyholders." Such products and services include insurance to provide for financial needs resulting from loss of
or income and management of funds accumulated for preretirenent and retirement needs.

The Company is licensed to do business in all 50 states.
The preparation of financial statements réquires management to make estimates and"assﬁmptions that affect amounts 1€pOI

in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Such estimates and assumptions could change in the future as m
information becomes known, which could impact the amounts reported and disclosed herein.




THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY-AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- CONTINUED

ST LR aTE D

Restatement -

The accompanying financial statements have been adjusted to correct errors-in the calculation of defel-'redwpolicy ‘acquisition
costs and future policy benefits related to the Company’s term life insurance products. . Policyholders’ and total equity as of
January 1, 2002 was reduced by $7,067 000 as a result of the. restatement. .. The effeots of the nostatcment are presented

below: C- T L i, Pt SET PR
2004 0 oo 2003 vosan oo 3
As coecimas s AL L e
Previously As Previously As
Reported . - _Restated: - Reported - _Restated ;. .-
R (in thousands) @l Lot el e
At December 31: AR e e
Deferred policy acquisition costs '~ $ 370223 $ 370,100 $ 358,632 'S 356, 49’5 T
Deferred federal income tax asset - - - 2887 )
Other assets o ‘ 403,421 374,965 291,224 273,883
Future policy benefits Tt 4028737 7 4,036,163 4,003,852 4,010,705
Deferred federal income tax liability 17,020 4,422 8,928 --
Policyholders’ equity ‘ . 650,505 627,109 - 606,984 589870 .
Totalequlty _ T 650,890 0 627494 609 211 592097_,‘ o
2004 C 200 72002
L As T As LA o
" Previously As ' Previously  As Prevmusly T As

Reported Restated ~ Reported _Restated” - Regortgg Restated
o R (in thousands) o

For the year ended December 31:
Increase in reserves for future

. policy benefits - . . . 3 993 $ 12, 680 $ 4942 $ 14—053. u$. 7'993 $ 12 096 :
Underwriting, acquisitionand . . .« - . R R e S
.insurance expense - - . 168,721+ . 166 699 198,169 200 740 o r-«‘-195 376 : :.195 048 s
Income (loss) before federal income - -+ - . e Y M L g :
tax expense {benefit) I 59,657 49 992' . 48,902 37,220-: S (42 024) (45 799)
Federal income tax expense (beneﬁt) 16,136 12,753 16,051 11,962 (16,517) (17,838)
Net income (loss) Coa o A3,521. 37,239 32,851 25258 ... 25,507y (27;961)
Investments

IR

Fixed matunty and eqmty securities class;ﬁed as avallable-for-sale are camed at fair value w1th net unreahzed gains and
losses. reported as other comprehensive income or Joss.: Other fixed maturity and equity securities represent the underlying
assets of consolidated mutual fnnds and are camed at falr value w:th changes m fa1r~value recorded in net mvestment

il

Other investments are rcported on the foilowmg bases

-« Mortgage loans on real estate are carried ‘at their aggregate unpald balance less unamortized- dlscount or plus
unamortized premium and less an allowance for possible losses. ‘Mortgage loans held for sale are mortgages
the Company intends to sell. Mortgage loans held for sale are stated at lower of aggregate cost or market. The
amount, by which cost exceeds market value, if any, is accounted for as a valuation allowance. Changcs in the
valuation allowance are included in the determination of net income in the penod of change T

"« Real estate acquired through foreclosure is carried at the lower of cost or its’ net reahzable value o
" Policy loans are reported at unpaid balances.
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THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- CONTINUED

¢ Cash and short-term investments consist of cash-in-bank, cash-in-transit and commercial paper that has
maturity date of 90 days or less from the date acquired.

¢ . Receivable for securities represents amounts due from brokers resulting from securities that were sold at

. end of the year, but the proceeds have not been received at the balance sheet date.

e Payable for securities represents amounts due to brokers resulting from securities purchased at the end of
year for which payment has not been made at the balance sheet date.

The Company's carrying values of investments in limited partnerships are adjusted to reflect the GAAP earnings of
investments underlying the limited partnership portfolios.

The fair values of fixed maturity and equity securities represent quoted market values from published souzces or calcul
market values using the "yield method" if no quoted market values are obtainable.

Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are recognized on a specific identification basis. Realized losses due t¢
recognition of declines in the value of investments judged to be other-than-temporary are recognized on a spe
identification basis.

Interest is not accrued on mortgage loans or bonds for which principal or interest payments are determined tc
uncollectible. o

In 2004 and 2003, the Company entered into repurchase agreements to economically hedge the interest rate risk associ
with funded mortgage loans held for sale that have not yet been sold. Based on the terms of the repurchase agreements
transactions are considered collateralized loans in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No.

“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities”. The Company
$71,041,060 and $36,257,000 in outstanding repurchase agreements for the vears ended December 31, 2004 and 2
respectively. As the Company sold the collateral that was pledged to the Company, a liability has been recognize
“Obligation under repurchase agreement” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets to reflect the obligation to return the collat
Also, the Company recognized a receivable representing the cash it lent under the terms of the repurchase agreement, w
totaled $71,730,000 and $36,457,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and was reflecte
“Amounts receijvable under repurchase agreement” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Company has entered into reverse repurchase agreements whereby the Company sells securities and simultanec
agrees to repurchase the same or substantially the same securities. Reverse repurchase agreements are accounted ft
collateralized borrowed money with the amount received for the securities recorded in “Other liabilities” in the Consolic
Balance Sheets, At December 31, 2004, the Company had reverse repurchase agreements-outstanding with. a total can
value of $24,555,000. There were no repurchase agreements outstanding as of December 31, 2003 and 2002.

The Company purchases and sells call options to hedge insurance contracts whose credited interest is linked to retun
Standard & Poor's 500 Stock Index (Index) based on a formula which applies participation rates to the retumns in the Ir
Call options are contracts, which give the option purchaser the right, but not the obligation, to buy securities at a spec
price during a specified period. The Company holds call options which expire monthly until December 1, 2005.
Company paid and received initial fees {the option premium) to enter the option contracts. The purchased Index call op
give the Company the right to receive cash at settlement if the closing Index value is above the strike price, while the
index call.options require the Company to pay cash at settlement if the closing Index value is-above the strike price.
Company selis call options to effectively offset the proceeds the Company would receive on its purchased call options
represent a return above the amount that would be credited to insurance contracts electing a capped return in the Index.

The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance by counter-parties to the call options
minimize this risk, the Company only enters into private options contracts with counterparties having Standard & P
credit ratings of AA- or above or listed contracts guaranteed by the Chicago Board Options Exchange. The credit expe
is limited to the value of the call options of $6,083,000 at December 31, 2004.

The call options are carried at their fair value, and are reflected in “Other invested assets” in the Consolidated Bal

Sheets. The liabilities for the hedged insurance contracts are adjusted based on the market value of the call options, an
reflected in “Deposit funds” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The liabilities for the hedged insurance contracts
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THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- CONTINUED

adjusted based- on the returns in- Standard. & Poor’s: 500 Stock Index, and were ‘reflected-in “Deposit- funds™ in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets The notional amount of the call opttons at December 31 2004 and 2003 was < $50 574, 000 and
$31,128,000, respecttvely crin o .

In 2004 and 2003 the Company entered mto mterest rate swap agreements w1th a nottonal value of $35 000, 000 and
$125,000,000, respectively, with Morgan Stanley, Bank One and Deutsche Bank. The purpose .of the interest rate swap
agreements was to hedge interest rate risk associated with specifically identified bonds within the Company’s investment
portfolio. The interest rate swap agreements were categorized as and met the criteria of effective fair value hedges.. Under
the interest rate swap agreements, the Company paid a fixed rate and received a floating interest rate. The objective of the
interest rate:swaps was to offset any change in value of the bonds due to market interest rate fluctuations. . The Company is
exposed to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance by the. counter-parties to-the interest rate swaps. : To
minimize this risk, the Company only enters into private contracts with counterparties having Standard & Poor’s.credit
ratings of AA- or above or listed contracts guaranteed by the Chicago Board Options Exchange. -The credit exposure is
limited to-the value of the interest rate swaps of $317,000 at December 31, 2003: The Company is required to make semi-
annual interest payments based on the fixed rate-inherent in the- interest rate swaps. Settlement of gain or loss under the
interest rate swaps occurs-upon termination. The financing cost of the interest rate swaps excluded from the assessment of
hedge effectiveness totaled $307,000 and $592,000 in 2004 and 2003 respectively, and was recorded in“Net investment
income” in the Consohdated Statements of Income

The change in value of the mterest rate swaps was accounted for conststently with the hedged bonds During 2004 and 2003
$75,000,000 and $85,000,000, respectively, of the notional value of the interest ratc swap agreements was terminated,
leaving no notional value as of December 31, 2004, In 2004 and 2003, respectively, a pre-tax gain of $262, 000 and
$603,000 was realized upon the terminations of the agreements and was recorded in “Net investment income” in the
Consolidated Statements of Income. : S : S

In 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company entered into one-month swap agreements with Deutsche Bank and Morgan Stanley to
hedge the change in value of a portion of its investments in certain Summit Mutual Fund, Inc. mutual funds. {See Note 2 for
further detail of the Company’s investments in these funds.) The notional amount of the swap agreements is set based on the
amount of the Company’s investments in the mutual funds that it determines to hedge. Under the swap agreements, the
Company pays or receives the total return of the associated indexes during the term of the swap agreements, and receives
interest income on the notional amount of the swap agreements that approximates prevailing short-term rates. The Company
records the change in value of its swap agreements and investments in the unconsolidated hedged Sumrmt mutual funds in
earnings. The swap agreements were designated and qualified as fair value hedges. :

For-.the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the swap agreements offset unrealized gains of $301,000, $0 and
$3,449,000, respectively, and pre-tax realized gains (losses) of $440,000, $2,138,000 and ($7,919,000), respectively, that the
Company incurred in the hedged mutual funds. Swap agreements with a notional value of $4,200,000 and $0 .were
cutstanding as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. . : : : - Cat

In 2004, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements with a notional value of $75,000,000 at December 31,
2004, with Morgan Stanley and Bank One. The swap agreements are carried at their fair value and are reflected in “Other
invested assets” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The purpose of the interest rate swap agreements was to hedge interest
rate risk associated with a pool of commercial mortgage loans held for sale. Under the interest rate swap agreements, the
Company paid a fixed rate and received a floating interest rate. The objective of the interest rate swaps is to offset any
change'in value due to market interest rate fluctuations of the pool of commercial mortgage loans prior to the sale. -The loss
in fair value of the swap agreements of $1,153,000 and financing costs of $737,000 was recorded in “Net investment
income” in the Consolidated Statements of Income.. The interest rate swap agreements were not- designated-as hedging
instruments, . : e - : o

In 2002, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements with a notional value of $200,000,000 with Deutsche Bank
and Morgan Stanley. The purpose of the interest rate swap agreements was to hedge: interest rate risk associated with a pool
of commercial mortgage loans that the Company had agreed to sell to Morgan Stanley. Under the interest rate swap
agreements, the Company paid 2 fixed rate and received a floating interest rate. The objective of the. interest rate swaps was
to offset any change in value due to market interest rate fluctuations of the pool of commercial mortgage loans prior to the
sale to Morgan Stanley. The interest rate swaps were terminated upon the closing of the sale of the mortgage loans to
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Morgan Stanley. The loss was combined with the gain on the sale of commercial mortgage loans to Morgan Stanley. The
interest rate swap agreements were designated as and qualified es fair value hedges. SRR

The Company enters into loan commitments in association with originating commercial mortgage loans that are held for sale.
The Joan commitments are accounted for as derivative instruments, The loan commitments are marked to fair value based on
estimates of fluctuations in market interest rates for comparable morigage joans from loan commitment dates. The:loan
commitments are typically hedged with repurchase agreements. :

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

The costs’ of acquiring new business, principally commissions, certain expenses of the policy issue and underwriting
department and certain variable agency expenses have been deferred. Deferred policy acquisition costs are amortized
consistent with the methods described in "Policy Liabilities, Revenues, Benefits and Expenses". Amortization of deferred
policy acquisition costs totaled $52,832,000, $69,708,000 and $63,892,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively, and was included in "Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expense" in -the Consolidated
Statements of Income. Deferred policy acquisition costs are adjusted to reflect the impact of unrealized gains and losses on
available-for-sale securities. Adjustments decreasing deferred policy acquisition costs related to unrealized gains and losses
totaled $36,783,000, $40,765,000 and $44,955,000 at 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. T

In 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company revised its estimates of future gross profits, and as a result amortization of deferred
policy acquisition costs included in "Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expense" in the Consolidated Statements of
Income increased (decreased) ($5,969,000), $2,563,000 and $20,807,000 for the years ended 2004, 2003 and- 2002,
respectively. ' ' : S

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is valued at historical cost less accumulated depreciation in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
It consists primarily of Union Central's home office, furniture and fixtures and electronic data processing equipment.

Depreciation is computed with the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, not to exceed
10 years for office furniture and 3 years for electronic data processing equipment. Depreciation is computed for leasehold
improvements with the straight-line method over the shorter of the remaining lease term or useful life of the improvements.

Capitalization of Software Costs

Software development costs of $3,891,000 and $3.352,000 were capitalized in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Amortization
expense of $4,204,000, $5,283,000 and $3,598,000, respectively, was recorded to “Underwriting, acquisition and insurance
expense” in the Consolidated Statements of Income in 2004, 2003 and 2002. Depreciation is computed with the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life of the software, not to exceed 5 years. ' ' B

Deposit Funds

The liability for deposit funds is generally established at the policyholders' accumulated cash values plus amounts provided
for guaranteed interest. : , ‘ : :

Policy Claim Reserves

Policy claim reserves represent the estimated ultimate net cost of all reportec and unreported claims incurred. In addition, a
claim adjustment expense reserve is held to account for the expenses associated with administering these claims. The
reserves for unpaid claims are estimated using individual case basis valuations and statistical analyses. The claim adjustment
expense reserve is estimated using statistical analyses. These estimates are subject to the effects of trends in claim severity
and frequency. Although some variability is inherent in such estimates, menagement believes that the reserves for claims
and claim related expenses are adequate. The estimates are reviewed and adjasted as experience develops ot new
information becomes known and such adjustments are included in current operations. -
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Dividends to Policyholders . .

The Company’s dividend liabﬂity is tne amount estimated to have aecrued to policyholders as of each yenr-end Insurance in
force receiving dividends accounted for 6.19% and 5.63% of total insurance in force at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, ‘ S I UL I

Separate Accounts

Separate account assets and liabilities reported in the accompanying financial statements (excluding seed money provided by
the Company) represent funds that are separately administered for the individual anmuity, -group;-annuity and variable
universal life lines of business, and for which the contract holders rather than the Company bear the investment risk.
Separate account contract holders have no claim against the assets of the general account of the Company. Separate account
investments are carried at market value. Investment income and gains and losses from these accounts accrue directly to
contract holders and are not included in the accompanying financial statements. Union Central derives certain fees for
maintaining and managing the separate accounts, but beats no investment risk onthese assets, except to the extent that it
participates in a particular separate account. On assets transferred to the separate accounts, the Company recognized interest
income of $37,846,000, $22,455,000 and $25,491,000 and investment gains (losses) of $172,762,000, $327,660,000 and
($318,870,000) for the years ending December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The interest income and investment
gains were offset by the increase m separate account 11ab111t1es w1th1n the same. line item in the Consolidated Statements of
Income. . S . o : oo
The Company issues variable annuity contracts through the separate accounts where the Company contractually guarantees
to the contract holder total deposits made to the contract less any partial withdrawals. This guarantee only includes benefits
that are payable in the event of death. The total separate account assets-and liabilities for policies with a minimum
guaranteed death benefit were $365,042,000 and $335,182,000 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and were
composed of mutual funds. Death claims incurred and paid as a result of the minimum guaranteed death benefit totaled
$146,000, $325,000 and $146,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company had
$15,649,000 of net amount at risk involving the minimum guaranteed death benefit on variable annuities as of December 31,
2004. The weighted average attzined age for contract holders with a minimum guaranteed death benefit was 57 years old as
of December 31, 2004, R : . : I

Policy Liabilities, Revenues, Benefits and Expenses
Traditional Insurance Prod

Traditional insurance products include those products with fixed-and guaranteed premiums and benefits and consist primarily
of whole life insurance policies, term insurance policies and disability income policies. Premiums for traditional products
are recognized as revenue when due.

The liability for future policy benefits for participating traditional life is computed using a net level premium method and the
guaranteed mortality and dividend fund interest. The mortality and interest. assumptions are -equivalent to statutory
assumptions. The liabilities for future policy benefits and expenses for nonparticipating traditional life policies and disability
income policies are generally computed using a net level premium method and assumptions for investment yields, morbidity,
and withdrawals based principally on experience projected at the time of policy issue, with provision for possible adverse
deviations. Interest assumptions for participating tradmonal life reserves for all pohcws ranged from 2.3% to 6:0% for the
years ended 2004 and 2003. :

The costs of acquiring new traditional business, principally commissions, certain policy issue and underwriting expenses
(such as medical examination and inspection report fees) and certain agency expenses, all of which vary with and are
primarily related to the production of new and renewal business, are deferred to the extent that such costs are deemed
recoverable through future gross premiums. Such non-participating deferred acquisition costs are amortized over the
anticipated premium paying period of the related policies, generally not to exceed the premium paying lifetime of the policies
using assumptions consistent with those used to develop policy benefit reserves. For participating life insurance produets,
deferred policy acquisition costs are amortized in proportion to estimated gross margins of the related- policies. Gross
margins are determined for each issue year and are equal to premiums plus investment income less death claims, surrender
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benefits, administrative costs, policyholder dividends, and the increase in reserves for future policy benefits. The future
investment yields are assumed to range from 5.7% to 8.2%, 6.1% to 8.3% and 7.0% to 8. 2% for the years ended 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectwely Changes in dwrdend payouts are assumed with changes in yields.. ‘

Universal Llfe and Other Interest Sensrtlve Products

Interest sensitive products include universal life, single premium whole life and annuity products. They are distinguished by
the existence of a separately definable fund that is credited with interest and from which any policy charges are taken.
Revenues for these products consist of policy charges for the cost of insurance, policy adrmmstratlon charges and. surrender
charges that have been assessed agamst pollcyholder account balances durmg the penod : S

Benefit reserves for umversal lrfe and other rnterest sensitive products -are computed in- accordance with the retrospective
deposit method and represent policy account balances before applicable surrender charges. Policy benefits that are charged
to expense include benefit claims-incuired in the period in excess of related policy account:-balances and interest credited to
account balances. Interest crediting rates ranged from 2 8% to 7. 0%, 5% to 6.5% and 4 5% to 8.0% forthe years ended
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectwely : S . P

The cost of acquiring universal life and other mterest sensitive products, prmc1pally commissions, certam policy issue and
underwriting expenses (such as medical examination and inspection report fees) and certain agency expenses, all of which
vary with and are primarily related to the production of new and renewal business, are deferred to the extent that such costs
are deemed recoverable through future estimated gross profits. Acquisition costs for universal life and other interest
sensitive products are amortized over the life of the policies in proportion to the present value of expected gross profits from
surrender charges and investment, mortality' and expense margins. The amortization is adjusted retrospectively -when
estimates of current or future gross profits (including the impact of investment gains and losses) to be reahzed ﬁ‘om a group
of products are revised. . :
Amounts assessed polrcyholders that represent revenue for services to be provided in future periods are reported as unearned
revenue and recognized in income over the life of the policies, using the same assumptions and factors as are used to
amortize deferred acquisition costs. - These charges consist of policy fees and premium loads that are larger in the initial
policy years than they are in the later policy years. Amortization of unearned revenue totaled $15,341,000, $10,558,000 and
$20,685,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectlvely, and was 1ncluded in "Universal life policy
charges” in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

In 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company revised its estimates of future gross profits, and as a result amortization of unearned
revenue included in "Universal life policy charges” in the Consolidated Statements of Income was increased by $3,396,000,
$3,161,000 and $5,168,000 for the years ended 2004 2003 and 2002, respectwely : :

M&QM

Group products consist primarily of group life insurance, and group long and short term - dlsablllty income products
Premrums for group insurance products are recogmzed as revemie when due. : -

The llabrlmes for ﬁmrre pohcy beneﬁts and expenses for group life and dlsabrlrty income products are cornputcd using
statutory methods and assumptions, which approximate net level premium reserves using assumptions for investment yields,
mortality, and withdrawals based principally on company experience projected at the time of policy issue, with provisions for
possible adverse deviations, Interest assumptions are based on assumed investment yields that ranged from 6.6% to 8.3% and
7.5% to 8.3% for the years ended 2004 and 2003 respectlvely

Pensron Prgduﬂ

Pension products include deferred annuities and.payout annuities. . Revenues for the deferred annuity products consist of
investment income on policy funds, mortality and expense charges, contract administration fees, and surrender charges that
have been assessed against policyholder account balances. Expenses for deferred annuity products include the interest
credited on policy funds and expenses incurred in the administration and maintenance of the contracts. For payout annurtres

premiwmns are recognized as revenue when due while expenses exclude the interest credited on policy funds.
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Benefit reserves for the deferred annuity contracts represent the policy account balances before applicable surrender charges.
Interest assumptions on payout annuities are based on assumed investment yields that ranged from 2.0% to 8.0% for the
years ended 2004 and 2003. R e e I :

Commissions and other related costs of acquiring annuity contracts that vary with and are primarily related to the production
of new and renewal business are deferred to the extent that such costs are deemed recoverable through future estimated gross
profits. Acquisition costs are amortized over the life of the contracts in direct proportion to the present value of expected
gross profits from surender charges and investment and expense margins. The amortization is adjusted retrospectively when
estimates of current or future gross profits (including the impact of investment gains or losses) to be realized on a group of
contracts are revised. : o

Reinsurance .

Reinsurance premiums and claims are accounted for on bases consistent with those used in accounting for the original
policies issued and the terms of the reinsurance contracts. Premiums and benefits are reported net of reinsured amounts.

Federal Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method for financial accounting and reporting of income taxes.
Under this method, deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences of “temporary differences" by applying
the applicable tax rate to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets
and liabilities.

Reclassifications

Previously reported amounts for prior years, have in some instances, been reclassified to conform to the 2004 presentation.
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NOTE2 - INVESTMENTS T

Available-for-sale securities are summanized as follows:

December 31, 2004:

U.S. treasury securities and obligations
of U.S. government corporations
and agencies _

Corporate securities and other

Mortgage-backed securities,

collateralized mortgage obligations and

other structured securities
Subtotal

Equity securities o
Total .

December 31, 2003:

U.S. treasury securities and obligations
of U.S. government corporations
and agencies

Corporate securities and other

Mortgage-backed securities,
collateralized mortgage obligations and
other structured securities
Subtotal

Equity securities
- Total

Cost or - Gross " Gross o
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
" Cost’ - Gains (Losses) Value -
- (in thousands) - a
$ 34,931 $ 171 $ (154) $ 34948
2,386,810 86,339 (5,939) 2,467,210
943.542 10.864 (1.792) 946.,6 1‘4
3,365,283 97,374 (13,885) 3,448,772
16.681 856 (62) 11475
$3.381,964 3 98230 3 _(13947) $3,466,.247
Cost or Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Yalue
(in thousands)
$ 40314 $ 354 $ - $ 40,668
2,045,679 97,063 (11,937) 2,130,805
1.279.156 16,882 {18,579) 1,277.459
3,365,149 114,299 (30,516) 3,448,932
59,810 3,616 (349) 63,077
$3.424,959 $ 117915 3 (30,865) $3.512,009

Fixed maturity available-for-sale securities, at December 31, 2004, are summarized by stated maturity as follows:

Due in one year or less

Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years

Duge afier ten years
Subtotal

Mortgage-backed securities

Other securities with multiple repayment dates

Total

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

(in thousands)

§ 44,604
332,600
1,151,657
727,189
2,256,050

943,601
163,632

$ 45,380
346,360
1,192,823
745260
2,329,823

946,679

172270

$3.448,777
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Significant components of the unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities included in "Accumulated other comprehensive
income™ in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 __ 2002

(in thousands)

Gross unrealized gain on available-

for-sale securities $ 84,283 $ 81050 § 95995
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs (36,783) (40,765) {44,955)
Deferred tax liability (16,625) (16,199 {17,864)
Net unrealized gain on available- -

for-sale securities § 30875 § 30086 3 33,176

A summary of available-for-sale securities with unrealized losses along with the related fair value, aggregated by the length
of time that investments have been in a continuous loss position, is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2004
Less than . . Twelve Months
Twelve Months or More Total
Gross S Gross Gross
‘Fair Unrealized . Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value __Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Fixed maturity securities $ 932256 § (10,548) $ 208,180 % (3,337 $1,140,436 § (13,885)

Equity securities 33 ~ (15 1.860 {47 1,893 (62)
Total $ 032280 L (10,563) $ 210,040 3 _(3.384) $1,142,329 §_(13.947)
December 31, 2003
Less than Twelve Months
Twelve Months or More Total
Gross Gross ‘ 07 Gross
Fair Unrealized "~ Fair Unrealized @ ° Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses ’ Value - _Losses

Fixed maturity securities $ 905114 $ (2245]) $§ 107,960 $ (8,065) $1,013,074 $ (30,516)
Equity securities 74 4) 347 (345) 421 {349)

Total £.905088 - § (2455) 5108307 § (84100  3L0I3.495 £_(30.863)

The unrealized losses in both 2004 and 2003 reported above were primarily caused by the effect of the interest rate
environment on certajn securities with stated interest rates currently below market rates, and as such, are temporary in nature.
Certain securities also experienced declines in fair value that were due in part to credit-related considerations. Upon review
of the economic circumstances underlying these securities, the Company determined that such declines were temporary in
nature. Therefore, the Company does not believe the unrealized losses on avallable-for—sale investments rcpresent an other-
than-temporary impairment as of December 31, 2004 and Decembcr 31,2003,

See Note 9 for discussion of the méthods and assumptlons used by the Company in estlmatmg the fair values of avallable-
for-sale securities.
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Investments in bonds on deposit with state insurance departments to satisfy regulatory requirements are carried at fair value
and totaled $3,325,000 and $3,498,000, at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. :

Proceeds, gross realized gains, and gross realized losses from the sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities follows:

Year Ended December 31,
__ 2004  __ 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Proceeds $2,415,601 $3,352,138  $1,013,004
Gross realized gains 35,895 69,271 42,803
Gross realized losses 16,064 28,000 - 37,792

In 2004, the Company completed the sale of mortgage-backed securities with a book value of $285,000,000 fo a third party
in conjunction with a securitization transaction that closed in 2005. An after-tax loss of $1.2 million was recorded on the
sale.

A summary of the characteristics of the Company's mortgage portfolio follows:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Percent of Percent of
Carrying Carrying  Carrying Carrying
_Amount _Amount  _Amount  _Amount
(in thousands)
Region
New England and Mid-Atlantic $ 42,272 6.8% F 31,354 5.9%
South Atlantic 134,944 21.8 97,623 18.5
North Central 114,090 18.4 102,113 19.4
South Central ' 56,338 9.2 46,756 8.9
Mountain 128,959 20.8 116,578 22.1
Pacific 142,709 23.0 133,227 252
Total - - § 619312 _1000% 8 527651 ._100.0%
Property Type
Apartment and residentizal $ 35772 5.8% ¥ 35805 6.8%
Warehouses and industrial o 135,800 219 110,028 20.8
Retail and shopping center : 209,921 339 178,264 33.8
Office 166,510 269 149,828 28.4
Other 71,309 11.5 53,726 10.2
Total §.619312 __1000%  §. 527651 __100.0%

In 2002, the Company sold commercial mortgage loans with a book value of $186,686,000 to Morgan Stanley. A pre-tax
realized gain of $15,857,000 (net of the loss of $5,980,000 on interest rate swaps used to hedge interest rate risk associated
with the mortgage loans) was recorded on the transaction. Relative to the sale, the Company has agreed to repurchase
mortgage toans which are secured by properties that do not have terrorism insurance in place, in the event the properties are
sub_pected to a terrorist attack resulting in a loss. As of December 31, 2004, the maximum potential exposure to the Company
is $3,400,000. It is management’s opinion that the probability of loss related to this commitment is remote due to the nature
and location of the properties,

At December 31, 2004 and,2003, respectively, an interest-only strip asset of $1,387,000 and $2,085,000 was recorded in
"Other invested assets" in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. During 2004, the Company recognized a pre-tax realized loss of
$305,000 recorded in "Net realized gains (losses) on investments” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and a reduction
of the interest-only strip asset of $305,000 due to the prepayment of mortgage loans previously sold to third parties. The
realized loss and reduction of the interest-only strip asset represented the present value of compensation related to mortgage
loans previously sold to third parties that the Company would have received over the life of the mortgage loans.
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Amortization expense of $393,000, $518,000 and $669,000 was recorded in "Net investment income" in the Consolldated
Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. :

In 2004 the Company recorded a pre-tax realized.loss of $335,000 representing the difference between net collateral value
and book value on two mortgage loans held for investment with a book value of $1,637,000. The Company recognized and
collected interest totaling $161,000 dunng 2004 on the two mortgage loans,

In 2003, the Company secured a $100 ml]hon warehouse finance fac1hty from a bank. This facility bears mterest at prime
(5.25% at December 31, 2004 and 4.00% at December 31, 2003) or LIBOR (2.56% at December 31, 2004 and 1.12% at
December 31, 2003) plus 1.00%. $84,565,000 and $18,970,000 was outstanding under this facility at December 31, 2004
and December 31, 2003, respectively, and was recorded in “Other liabilities” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Outstanding borrowings on the Company’s warehouse finance facilities are collateralized by commercial mortgage loans
held for sale. Upon the sale of these loans the borrowings under the facility are repaid.

Real estate consists of investment real estate under lease and foreclosed real estate. The investment rea) estate under lease is
depreciated over 40 years. The cost of the property totaled $1,755,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and accumulated
depreciation totaled $1,408,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003. The book value of foreclosed real estate was $9,709,000
and $10,926,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respecuvely

In 2000, the Company commenced the development of a 123-acre business park (the Park), which included the installation of
infrastructure and a roadway. To fund the cost of the infrastructure and roadway, the municipality in which the Park is
located issued $2,800,000 of municipal bonds. The municipal bonds will be paid off through tax increment financing (TIF).

TIF is an economic development tool that allows a local government to use increases in real property tax revenues to finance
public infrastructure improvements. Thus, the development of the Park will result in increased real property tax revenues,

which will be directed to pay off the municipal bonds. If increases in real property tax revenues from the Park are not
sufficient to service the municipal bonds, the Company must fund any shortage. The maximum estimated potential exposure
to the Company is $2,800,000. Based upon current prOJectlons the Company anticipates the increased property tax revenues
will be sufficient to fully service the municipal bonds. '

NOTE 3 - REINSURANCE

In the ordinary course of business, the Company assumes and cedes reinsurance with other insurers and reinsurers. These
arrangements provide greater diversification of business and limit the maximum net loss potential on large or hazardous
risks. Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders. Reinsurance ceded is
recorded in "Other assets” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, The Company remains liable to its policyholders for the
portion reinsured to the extent that any reinsurer does not meet its obligations for reinsurance ceded to it under the
reinsurance agreements. Failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in losses to the Company; consequently,
allowances would be established for amounts deemed or estimated to be uncollectible. To minimize its exposure to
significant losses from reinsurance insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors
concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, actlvmes, or economic characteristics of the reinsurers.
No losses are anticipated, and, based on management's evaluation; there are no concentrations of credit risk at December 31,
2004 and 2003. The Company retains the risk for varying amounts of individual or group insurance written up to a
maximum of $1,000,000 on any one life or $4,000 per month disability risk and reinsures the balance.
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e e

Reinsurance: transactions. with- other insurafice - compames for the years ended December 31, 2004 2003 and 2002 are

summarized as follows: e

BRI :.-"."'_ T R -"‘-‘.!'/"j LA P LT B ".‘i”"'f'."' Lo ' December—-Sl, 2004

B T AET R S Dlrect - Assumed . < (Ceded)

o (i thousands) C

Life insurance in force M § lgg,ggg mgm

< Premijums and other* - - o ‘
» ‘considerations: - ol tan
- Traditional insurance premiums- - & oo T TR
7 enduniversallife oy 3959730 8§ 5365 §- (225,676)

C$ 175462 7

32,336

Total

Decéinbef 31,2003

Assumed (Ceded)
h (m thousands)

Life insurance in force
Premlums and other
'considerations: e
’ Tradmonal msurance Pl‘emmms
and ‘universal life '
N - Annuity e

$ 5888"” s (173146):7,5._._'

31,854

December 31, 2002

" Direct " Assumed (Ceded).
(in thousands) ‘
Life insurance in force $42,802,027 $§ 162983 $(16,327.572)
Premiums and other
considerations: . , S
‘Traditional i msurance premlums .

anduniversal life .- $. 275453 8 | 6257 S (73,036)

" Anmity o a e 27143

~ Net

$ 208,674

27,143 -

Total 8 302.59 302,596 Lg.m LJLQ}Q%

5235817

Beneﬁts paid or prov1ded were reduced by $16 836 000 $2] 521 000 and 87, 165 000 at. December 31 2004 2003, and

2002 respectively, for estimated recoveries under reinsurance treaties.

Nelther the Company nor any of i rts related part:es control elther dlrectly or 1nd1rectly, any remsurers in whlch the Company
conducts business. . No policies issued by the Company have been reinsured with a foreign company, which is controlled,
either directly or indirectly, bya party. not pnmanly engaged in the business of i insurance. The Company has not entered into
any reinsurance agreements in which the reinsurer may  unilaterally cancel any reinsurance for reasons other than

nonpayment of premiums or other similar credits,
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NOTE 4 - FEDERAL INCOME TAX - .

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the
Company's deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows:

December 31,
2004 2003
(in thousands)

Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferred policy acquisition costs o $ 142412 § 140,704
Unrealized gains —-FAS 115 -+ ¢ 16,625 16,119
Capitalization of sofiware 4,581 5,245
Other 662 319
Total deferred tax llabllltles 164 280 162 379
Deferred tax assets: coor T S PANF RS S R
- Policyholders' dividends. .. - SRS SIS 2864 e 1 011
Future policy benefits R coaet o 79299 e --81 969
Basis differences on investments 17,823 20,405
Premium - based DAC adjustment 35,207 37,308
Retirement plan accruals 20,289 17,474
Investment income differences ‘ g e 858 . v 78T
Other . - . ‘ e oot 4,018 - 3,113
- Total deferred tax assets L ]159.858 - ¢ 162,667 -
Net deferred tax asset (liabilities) $ . {4422y F. 288

Significant components of the provision for income tax expense (benefit) attributable to continuing operations are as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2004 - . 2003 © 2002

(m thousands)

ST

Current . L8 1134 -8 10350 RS (13362)

Deferred oo ‘ - S 5619 - 1.612 -{4:476)
Total ' : ' : 8 12,753 & __ 11962 LJQ&Q

Federal income tax expense (benefit) is calculated based on applying the statutory-corporaté-tax Tate'to taxable income, and
adjusting this amount for permanent differences between deductions allowed for financial statement purposes versus federal
income tax purposes. Slgnlﬁcant dlfferences are due to adJustrnents to pnor years tax . hablhtles and the release of tax
contmgency reserves. ' . ‘

NOTE 5 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases

The Company leases office space for'various field agency offices with lease terms that vary in duration from 1 to 15 years.
Some of these leases include escalation clauses. that vary with levels of operating expense. Rental expense under these
operating leases totaled $3,808,000, $3,835,000 and $2,849,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company leased
equipment through a series of arrangements in 2004, 2003 and 2002. Rental expense under these agreements tota]ed
$158,000, $121,000 and $104,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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At December 31, 2004, the future minimum lease payments for all noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

Year Amount .
: (in thousands)
2005 $ 2,860
2006 2,212
| o o 2007 1,013
N SR T 2008 764
|8 2009 526 .
i o After 2009 . 1808
) - Total . §_ 9183

Other Commitments

At December 31, 2004, the Company had dutStanding agreements to fund mortgages totaling $3.8,065,000 in early 2005. In
4ok addition, the Company has committed to invest $11,241,000 in equity-type limited partnerships during the years 2005 to
: 2011. These transactions are in the normal course of business for the Company.

i Litigation

In the normal course of business, the Company is party to various claims and litigation primarily arising from claims made
under insurance policies and contracts. Those actions are considered by the Company in estimating the policy and contract
liabilities. The Company’s management believes that the resolution of those actions will not have a material adverse effect on
the Company's financial position or results of operations,

Guaranty Fund Assessments

- The economy and other factors have caused an increase in the number of insurance companies that are under regulatory
supervision. This circumstance is expected to result in an increase in assessments by state guaranty funds, or voluntary
payments by solvent insurance companies, to fund policyholder losses or liabilities of insurance companies that become
insolvent. These assessments may, in certain instances, be offset against future premium taxes. For 2004, 2003 and 2002, the
charge to operations related to these assessments was not significant. The estimated liability of $796,000 and $860,000 at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, was based on data provided by the National Organization of Life and Health
Insurance Guaranty Associations and was included in "Other liabilities” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

NOTE 6 - STATUTORY SURPLUS AS REPORTED TO REGULATORY AUTHORITIES

Umon Central ﬁles statutory-bams financial statements w1th regulatory authorities. Union Central's statutory—bas;s financial
statements are prepared in conformity with accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the Department of Insurance of
Ohio, Union Central's state of domicile. Effective January 1, 2001, the State of Ohio required that insurance companies
domiciled in the State of Ohio prepare their statutory basis financial statements in accordance with the NAIC Accounting
Practices and Procedures Manual subject to any deviations prescribed or permitted by the State of Ohio insurance
commissioner. Surplus as reflected in the statutory-basis financial statements was as follows: \

4 . Year Ended December 31,

o | | : 2004 . 2003

i
, I - : . (in thousands)
P Capital and surplus . § 337730 §_ 311308 -

B
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NOTE 7 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company has pension plans covering substantially all of its employees. Pension expense and funding was determined
according to regulations as specified by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and subsequent
amendments. Benefits are based on the average of the employee’s compensation over their career. '

In addition to pension benefits, the Company provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for its eligible retired
employees (“Other Postretirement Benefits”). Substantially all of the Company's employees may become ¢ligible for these
benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Company. '

The measurement date for the Company’s pension benefits was December 31. The measurement date for Other
Postretirement Benefits was October 1.- A summary of the assets, obligations and-assumptions are as follows:.

- Other -

Pension S :-V‘T ' - Postretirement

s .- Benefits R Benefits
2004 2003 2002 - _ 2004 — _ 2003 . 2002 __

; : : (in thousands) -

Accumulated benefit obligation $140,852  $128,666 $114,740 $ 25,596 $ 23,355 $ 19,861
. Projected benefit obligation $143,023  $130,603 $116837 $ B TR
Plan assets at fair vajue $109,540  $113,692  $ 94,745 $ 10,278 : $ 8,131 $ 5,835
Funded status L s(33483) S(16911)  $(22,092) $(15318)  $(15.224)  $(14,026)
Accrued liabilities $ 31.,312 $ 14,975 $ 19,996 ¥ 14,546 $ 15,343 . $15,038
Employer contributions ] - $ 4855 $20,157 $ 2575 § 2400 § 2,177
Plan participants’ contributions . $ -~ § - § . § 351 $ 242 § 220

Benefits and administrative expenses paid $ 6,014 § 6354 § 5792 § 2281 § 1,927 § 1,825

Comimnents.of net peribdic benefit cost:

Service cost § 357 $ 3711 $ 4104 $ 845 $ 731 § 540
Interest cost 8,181 7,962 8,459 1,464 1,336 1,389
Expected return on plan assets (8,746) (8,075) (7.830) (709) (504) (498)
Transition obligation/(asset) amortization 41 41) - (41) - - -
Amount of recognized (gains)/losses A 3,529 4,734 2,779 - -- -
Amount of unrecognized (gains)/losses e - - - -- (88)
Amount of prior service cost recognized (1,050) ' _ (1,070 -- 178 1,142 -
Total net periodic benefit cost $.5470 § 7221 $£7.47] $ 1778 § 2705 § 1343
Other
Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
Weighted average assumptions: : . .
Discount rate : 6.00% 6.50% 7.00% 6.00% 6.50% 7.00%
Expected compensation increase -3.00% 3.00% 3.50% 3.00% 3.00% 3.50%

Expected return on plan assets .8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% .8.50% 8.50%
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- Other .

Pension Postretivement

S IR Loeiren “Benefits - - .. ~Benefits :

Expected Benefit Payments: .~ -.: S0 erenth e o0 (in thousands) . C

2005 SR T T e T SIS NEEER A I 7.567 - - o E RN 1,562
2006 7,898 1,610
2007 T no s e Do o 8,376 : ‘ - 1,663

D 20080 0 ar el cemnna o 0 e BORE : s 1,716 : -
2009 RS s e e 9700 R : 1,765

2010 -2014 61,715 10,202

Also, $2,631,000, $3,071,000 and $6,879,000 (net of tax) was charged directly to policyholders' equity. in' 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively, as a result of recognizing an additional minimum pension liability adjustment under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions”, and was included in "Minimum pension
liability adjustment” in'the Consolidated Statements of Equity. The additional minimum liability adjustment as of December
31,2002 was reduced by $7,872,000 (net of tax) due to the establishment of an intangible asset. During 2003, the Company
detérmined that the intangible asset should not have been recorded in 2002. The intangible asset recorded in 2002 was

appropriately eliminated from the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the calculation of the additional minimum liability in

2003.

Plan assets of the pension and other postretirement benefit plans are composed of affiliated and unaffiliated mutual funds and
a portfolio of actively managed equity securities. As of their respective measurement dates in 2004 and 2003, $89,955,000
and $93,060,000 was invested in affiliated mutual funds. _

The expected long-term rate of return for the Company’s benefit plans is currently 8.5%. In developing this assumption, the
Company periodically monitors investment yields on the assets in the plans to determine if the current expected rate of return
is reasonable given the current investment performance. Historical and projected retumns are also reviewed for
appropriateness of the selected assumption. The Company believes its assumption of future returns is reasonable,

The primary investment objectives of the' Company’s benefit plans are to provide sufficient assets and liquidity to meet the
distribution requirements of the Plans through capital appreciation of the Plans’ assets and levelized funding. To accomplish
this objective, Pension Plan assets are invested in affiliated and unaffiliated mutual’ funds and assets of the Other
Postretirement Benefit Plans are invested in a diversified pool of equity securities, affiliated mutual funds and cash. The
Company’s investment strategy for the Pension Plan is generally a target investment mix of 60% equities and 40% bonds.
The Company’s investment strategy for Other Postretirement Benefit Plans is a target investment allocation consisting
primarily of equities with the remainder in bonds and cash. The actual allocation of plan assets by investment category for

the year ending December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:
- Other

" Pemsion ' ' - . Postretirement -
__Benefits S 7 Benefits
_ 2004 2003 Ui 2004 2003
Equity secuﬁties.; . o . L enh I WUk e R
" Domestic equities : ' e 52.3% - 51.6% : 82.6% ©OB7.0%
Foreign equities 9.6 9.2 9.4 3.8
Bonds I 38.1 392 5.8 -
Cash Do o - - 22 9.2
Total . =+t . L e S __100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100,0%

The Company’s current funding strategy for its benefit plans is to fund an amount at least equal to the minimum required

funding as determined under ERISA with consideration of factors such as the minimum pension liability requirement for
Pension Benefits and the maximum tax deductible amounts for both Pension Benefits and Other Postretirement Benefits.
The ultimate amount of the Company’s funding may be adjusted’ based on changes in-the fair value of plan assets and
changes in related assumptions. For the year ending December 31, 2004, the Company does not expect any required
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contributions under ERISA for the Pension Plans and will fund Other Postretirement Benefits Plans to meet their. hquldlty

The health care cost trend rate was 12.1% graded to 5. 0% over 10 years for 2004, The health care. cost trend rate assumption
has an insignificant effect on the postretirernent benefit obligation, the interest cost and estimated ellglblhty cost components
of the net periodic postretirement benefit cost as of and for the year ended December 31, _2004 o Ck

The Company did not adjust its pl‘O_]CCthH of the llathty fer Other Postretlrement Beneﬁt.s to consn‘ler the 1mpaet of the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 as the impact was immaterial.: .

The Company has two _contributory savings plans. :for home. office employees and agents meeting certain service
requirements, which qualify under. Section 401(k) of the Internal: Revenue Code. These plans atlow eligible employees to
contribute up to certain. prescribed. limits of their pre-tax compensation, The Company will match 50% -of the first 6% of
participants' contributions for the Employees Savings Plan and the Agents Savings Plan. The Company's matching
contributions to these plans were $1,846,000, $1,820,000 and $1,964,000 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The value
of the plans’ assets:was $95,318,000 and $83,287,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The assets are held in
the deposit fund or under the variable accounts of a group annuity po]ley At December 31, 2004 and 2003, $31 960,000 and
$28,994,000, respectively, was invested in affiliated mutual funds.. o TS T

NOTE 8 - FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

The following methods and assumptlons were used by the Company in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial
instruments: . >

Cash and short-term investments: The carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. fer these
instruments approxxmate their fair values. T S

Investment securities: Fau" values for bonds are based on quoted market prices, where avallable If quoted market
prices are not available, fair values are estimated using values obtained from independent securities broker dealers or
quoted market prices of comparable instruments. The fair values of common stock in Company sponsored mutual funds
are based on quoted market prices and are recognized in "Equity securities available-for-sale at fair value™, “Other fixed
maturities” and “Other equity securities” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The fair values for limited partnershlps
are based on the quoted market prices of the invesiments underlying the limited partnership portfolios. .- .\

Mortgage loans; The fair values. for commercial: ‘mortgages held: for investment in good standing are estimated using
discounted cash flow’ analysis using interest rates currently. bemg -offered for similar loans to borrowers with similar
credit ratings in comparison with. actual interest rates and maturity dates. Fair values for mortgages held for investment
with potential Joan losses are based on discounted cash flow analysis of the underlying properties.

The estimate of fair values for commercial mortgage loans held for sale is based on current pricing of whole loan
transactions that a purchaser unrelated to the seller would demand for a similar loan.

Warehousg Fmance Facthg The warehouse ﬁnanee fac1]1ty is offered wtth mterest at market mterest rat% and
.. therefore, the earr_wng value of the warehouse finance facility is a reasonable estimation ef fair value.. - el

Pollgg loans Management is unab]e to ascertam the esumated life of the pohcy ]oan portfoho Due to the excessive
costs that would be incurred to determine this information, management considers the estimation of its fair value to be
impracticable. The nature of a policy loan insures that the outstanding loan balance will be fully recoverable because the
balance owed to the Company is always equal to or lower than the cash value of the insurance policy owed to the
policyholder. Policy loans are stated at their aggregate unpaid balance in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Investment contracts: Fair values for the Company's liabilities under mvestment-type insurance contracts are estimated

using discounted cash flow calculations, based on interest rates currently being offered for similar contracts with
maturities consistent with those remaining for the contracts being valued.
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- Surplus “notes: - Fair vahie for'the-Company’s ‘surplus: notes liability: was estimated using-a discounted:‘cash’ ﬂow
calculation based on current interest rates consistent with the maturity of the surplus notes. -

: Repurchase Agzeements The fatr value of repurchase agrcements are based on quoted market pnces
i il A . -
Interest Rate Swap Agt_-gements The fatr value of interest rate swaps is the esttmated amount the Company wbuld
recelve or pay to tenmnate the agreements based on current market mterest rates,
: HOommgmlygent nent e

The carrymg amounts and fair values ofthe Company's morigage loans are as follows e B P

“December 31. 2004 ‘December 31, 2003

Fair- -

7' Carrying

CFalr -

- e _Ameunt - Value o _Amount! " Value L
_ < (in thousandg) -~ = -
Mortgageloans It R qﬁ ﬁlgilg § gggzgg 8 '531 521: M

The carrying amounts and falr values of the Company's habtltttes for investment-type insurance ‘contracts are s follows:‘

December 31,2004 Décember 31,2003 -
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amotint - Value ' _Amouwit- Value "

(in thousands)

‘Direct access - $61,072 -8 61072 S 63,208 § 63208
Traditional annuities 35,157 38,324 ¢ 34896 - 38838
Supplementary contracts 9,855 9,907 10,919 11,073

GPA not'involving life - - - X 1 584 - M9 - 78S
Dividend accumulations =~ - ¢ 5,830 5,830 5,846 5,846
Prermumdeposxtfunds : S il B :'-«'-’662*‘- 662 - 664 - 664
Total s DL B b E llﬁ 379 - § ;;g,g;; § ;gg.gg -

The carrying amounts and fatr values of the Company's habtllty for surplus fiotes are as follows
enizieens i December- 315 2004
“:Catrying: - Fair

- December 31, 2003
Carrying - Fair s

ZAmount’ _ Value = = _Amount’ _Value
S s (i thousands) o e

Surplus notes - - S gg,ggg § ;g,g;g § gg,gg; ,§ ;g,giz

The Company's other insurance contracts are excluded from dlsclosure requirements. However, the falr values of liabilities
under-all insurance coritracts are taken into consideration in-the Company's overall management of interest rate risk; which
minimizes exposure-to -changing interest ratés ‘throtigh the ‘matching of investment maturities ‘with “amicunts due under
insurance contracts. Addmonal data W1th respect to the carrymg value and fair value of the Companys mvestmenm is
dlsclosed mNote2 : SRR
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NOTE 9 - LIABILITY FOR UNPAID CLAIMS AND CLAIM ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

Activity in the liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expense is summarized as follows:

December 31,
2004 2003 2002
i+ o (in thousands) .

Balance as of January 1 . - K $ 176,655 § 161,037 § 152,796
Incurred related to: . o L

Current year : . 83,105 91,862 80,743

Prior yeats - f 11.451 6,927 11,821
Total incurred 94,556 98,789 92,564
Paid related to :

Current year 45,940 .52,342 50,279

Prior years 39,023 30,829 34,044
Total paid 84.963 83,171 84,323
Balance as of December 31 $ 186248 § 1;1@,5;: 8 ]§‘1.Q2_Z'

The balance in the liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses is included in "Future policy benefits" and
"Policy and contract claims" in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. ‘

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the provision of claims and claim adjustment expenses
increased by $11,451,000, $6,927,000 and $1 1,821,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Amounts related to incurred
claims related to prior years’ resulted from prior year claims being settled for amounts greater than originally estimated,
Included in the above balances are reinsurance recoverables of $2,615,000, $4,037,000 and $2,413,000 at 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

NOTE 10 - SURPLUS NOTES

On November 1, 1996, Union Centrat issued $50,000,000 of 8.20% Surplus Notes (Notes). The Notes mature on November
1, 2026 and may not be. redeemed prior to maturity, The Notes are unsecured and subordinated to all present and future
policy claims, prior claims and senior indebtedness. Subject to prior written approval of the Superintendent of the Ohio
Insurance Department, these Notes pay interest semi-annually on May 1 and November 1. Interest expense of $4,100,000
was incurred in 2004, 2003 and 2002, and was recorded as a reduction of "Net investment income" in the Consolidated
Statements of Income. In connection with issuing the Notes, Union Central incurred and capitalized $765,000 of issuance
cost, This cost is recorded in "Other assets" in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and totaled $562,000 and $587,000 as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Issuance cost of $26,000 was amortized in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively,
and recorded to "Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expense" in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Additionally,
the Notes have an original issue discount of $260,000, which is deducted from the balance of the Notes. Issuance costs and
original issue discount will be amortized under the straight-line method over the term of the Notes. Amortization relating to
original issue discount of $9,000 was recorded in 2004, 2003 and 2002 in "Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expense"
in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Unamortized original issue discount of $190,000 and $199,000 was deducted
from the balance of the Notes as of December 31 » 2004 and 2003, respectively,

NOTE 11 - COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income” (FAS 130) establishes the
requirement for the reporting and display of comprehensive income and its components in the financial statements.
Comprehensive income is defined by the FASB as all changes in an enterprise's equity during a period other than those
resulting from investments by owners and distributions to owners. Comprehensive income includes net income and other
comprehensive income, which includes all other non-owner related changes to equity and includes unrealized gains and
losses on available-for-sale debt and equity securities and minimum pension liability adjustments, FAS 130 also requires
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separate presentation of the accumulateéd balance’of other comprehensive income within the equity section of a statement of
financial position. The Company has presented the required displays of total comprehensive income and its components,

2-26

azlong with the separate presentation of the accumulated balance of: other’ comprehensive income within the Consolidated
Statements of Equity. -
Following are the FAS 130 disclosu'rés'- orf,,thé& reléted“.thi effects allocated to each component of other comprehensive income
and the accumulated other comprehensive income balances required by FAS 130.
: Year Ended December 31, 2004
Before-Tax Tax Net-of-Tax
Amount Expense/{Benefit) Amount
o (in thousands) o
Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized gains arising during 2004 $ 22,694 $ 7943 $ 14,751
Less: reclassification adjustments’ R S
for gains realized in net income —.(21.480) (1.518) 13,962
. Net unrealized gains 1214 ‘ 425 _789
Minimum pension liability adjustment {4.048) a4 {2.631)
Othier comprehensive loss $__ (992 8 (L84
= Year Ended December 31, 2003 '
Before-Tax Tax " Net-of-Tax
~Amount Expense/(Benefit) -Amount
(in thousands)
Unrealized losses on securities: _ _
“ __Un;cal"iz'ed gains arising during 2003  * § 20,561 3 7,_1'96 - $- 13,365
Less: 'reélas_siﬁCation adjustments” ' o
for gains realized in'net income (25316) * - __ (8.861) 164
Net unrealized losses - C o (4755) (1,665) 3,090
Minimum pgnsion Iiabil_i_ty adjl;'shne_}nt__-"’ R . (4,725} ~(1,654) D 3.071) '
Other comprehiensiveloss ' §_ (9.40) $.0319) 7§ (6161
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Year Ended December 31, 2002

Before-Tax
Amount
Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized gains arising during 2002 $ 58,105
Less: reclassification adjustments
for gains realized in net income (3.817)

Net unrealized gains 54.288

Minimum pension liability adjustment (10,583)
Cther comprehensive income § _ 43705

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Tax Net-of-Tax
Expense/(Benefit) Amount
(in thousands)
$ 20,337 $ 37,768
(1,336} (2.481)
19,001 35287
3,704 6,879
315,297 528408

In January 2005, the Board of Directors of Union Central and the Ameritas Acacia Companies voted to combine at the
mutual holding company level. The target date for the consolidation is the end of 2005. Members and policyholders of the
companies must approve the transaction. In addition, a number of regulatory approvals must be met, including approval
from the Department of Insurance in Ohio. The Department of Insurance in Nebraska approved the transaction in 2005.
The Company has offered to qualifying associates an early retirement benefit that is contingent upon the approval of the
combination. The after-tax expense associated with the early retirement benefit is anticipatsd to be approximately $6.8
million, and as the approval of the combination is considered probable, the expense was recorded in 2005.
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LS

UnionCenbral

The Union Central Life Insurance Company
1876 Waycross Road

Cincinnati, OH 45240

(800) 825-1551

August 22, 2005

Dear Union Central Policyholder:

In late July or early August you received a Policyholder Information Booklet, dated July
21, 2005, relating to a proposed Plan of Reorganization (the “Plan”). Under the Plan, The Union
Central Life Insurance Company (“Union Central”), an Ohio mutual life insurance company, will
convert to an Ohio stock insurance company subsidiary of a new Ohio mutual insurance holding
company (the “Conversion”), which holding company will thereafter be immediately merged
with and into Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company (“Ameritas Acacia”), a Nebraska
mutual insurance holding company (the “Merger” and, together with the Conversion, the
“Reorganization”™). Upon consummation of the Reorganization, Ameritas Acacia will change its
name to UNIFI Mutual Holding Company (“UNIFI”) and Union Central will be an indirect
subsidiary of UNIFI.

Several changes, which are described below, are being made to the Policyholder
Information Booklet and other materials previously sent to you. To ensure that you will have
ample time to consider these supplemental materials, we are postponing the special meeting
(“Special Meeting”) of Union Central policyholders (“Union Central Policyholders™) originally
scheduled for September 1, 2005. The Special Meeting has been rescheduled (“Rescheduled
Special Meeting™) for September 30, 2005, commencing at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time, at
Union Central’s home office, 1876 Waycross Road, Cincinnati, Ohio 45240.
The Superintendent of Insurance for the State of Ohio has also rescheduled the public
hearing on this matter to October 21, 2005 (“Rescheduled Public Hearing”). We ask that
you discard the original proxy card included with the Policyholder Information Booklet
and use the new blue-striped proxy card (“Proxy for Rescheduled Special Meeting”)
included with this letter. Only votes that are made on blue-striped proxies or cast by
Internet or telephone with control numbers from such blue-striped proxies will be counted
for the Rescheduled Special Meeting. Accordingly, if you have already submitted a proxy
card or voted by Internet or telephone, you must vote again as described below, or your
vote will not be counted. If you have not yet voted, we encourage you to vote now.

The changes to the Policyholder Information Booklet, described in the enclosed
Supplement to the Policyholder Information Booklet (the “Supplement”), are being made to
reflect certain errors in Union Central’s consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance
with United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) and certain information
derived from such GAAP financial statements, including unaudited pro forma GAAP financial
information. During the preparation of the June 30, 2005 GAAP financial statements, Union
Central identified an error in the calculation of certain reserve items relating to its term life
insurance product. The errors were uncovered when reserve entries were reviewed for the term
product on a stand-alone product basis. Due to these errors, GAAP total equity and net income
were overstated for certain periods as set forth below. Union Central’s audited GAAP financial



statements, originally included as Exhibit 2 to the Policyholder Information Booklet Exhibit
Volume, have been restated to reflect a reduction in the ceded reserve credit and other less
significant reserve related items with respect to term insurance products. The ceded reserve
credit is a receivable, or an asset, on Union Central’s GAAP balance sheet that represents the
portion of policy reserves that have been transferred to accredited third party reinsurance
companies by Union Central through reinsurance agreements. Management of Union Central
has concluded that these errors are isolated and do not reflect a systemic problem with Union
Central’s accounting processes.

The following table sets forth the adjustments to GAAP total equity as of December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively, and the adjustments to GAAP net income_for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Except for the percentage changes, all
amounts are in millions of dollars. Percentage changes in any given year are based on the
difference between the GAAP Restated Equity and the GAAP Reported Equity and the
difference between the GAAP Restated Net Income and the GAAP Reported Net Income, as
applicable, in such year.

Equity 2004 2003

Reported Equity $650.9 $609.2

Cumulative Adjustment 234 17.1

Restated Equity $627.5 $592.1

Percentage Change (3.6%) (2.8%)

Net Income 2004 2003 2002
Reported Net Income $43.5 $32.9 $(25.5)
Adjustment {6.3) (7.6) (2.5)
Restated Net Income $37.2 $25.3 $(28.0)
Percentage Change (14.5%) (23.1%) (9.8%)

Union Central’s restated audited consolidated GAAP financial statements, with the report
of independent auditors, are included in the enclosed Supplement. Please refer to the enclosed
Supplement for details of each change to the Policyholder Information Bocklet relating to these
GAAP adjustments, including changes to the unaudited pro forma financial information for
UNIFI. The unaudited UNIFI pro forma financial information has also been updated to reflect
the financial results for Union Central and Ameritas Acacia as of and for the six months ended
June 30, 2005. The restated unaudited UNIFI pro forma financial information as of and for the
three month period ended March 31, 2005 has not been presented therein.



The GAAP adjustments do not have any impact on Union Central’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with statutory accounting principles (“SAP”) for any
period. The GAAP adjustments described above would not have affected significantly, if at all,
any of Union Central’s financial decisions, or product decisions, or any financial transactions. In
addition, the GAAP adjustments result in a 2.8% and 3.6% reduction in Union Central’s
previously reported 2003 and 2004 GAAP total equity, respectively. In light of these factors,
both Union Central and Ameritas Acacia have agreed that the GAAP adjustments do not
constitute a material adverse effect under the Merger Agreement that would entitle Ameritas
Acacia to terminate the Merger Agreement,

The GAAP adjustments do not affect the Union Central Board’s conclusion that the
Plan is fair and equitable to the Union Central Policyholders and that the interests of the
Union Central Policyholders are properly protected. The Union Central Board continues
to recommend that you vote “FOR” the proposal relating to the Reorganization, which
proposal appears in the Notice of Rescheduled Special Meeting preceding the Supplement,
In addition, Morgan Stanley and Milliman have both confirmed that the GAAP adjustments have
no impact on their fairness opinions, each dated July 20, 2005, included as Exhibit 4 and Exhibit
5, respectively, of the Policyholder Information Booklet Exhibit Volume.

You may attend the Rescheduled Special Meeting in person or submit your vote by proxy
in any of the following ways: returning the enclosed blue-striped proxy card for Rescheduled
Special Meeting, voting by Internet or voting by telephone. For more details on how to vote,
please see the Questions and Answers included with the Policyholder Information Booklet and
voting instructions appearing on the enclosed blue-striped proxy card. For the Plan to be
approved, we must have the support of a majority of the votes cast by eligible Union Central
Policyholders voting in person or by proxy at the Rescheduled Special Meeting.

If you do not plan to vote in person at the Rescheduled Special Meeting, it is
important that you complete, sign, date and return your blue-striped proxy card in the
enclosed envelope or cast your vote by Internet or telephone. Instructions on how to vote by
phone or Internet appear on the enclosed blue-striped proxy card. Proxies sent by mail must be
received by 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, on September 29, 2005. Your prompt cooperation will be
greatly appreciated.

If you require another copy of the Policyholder Information Booklet, the
Policyholder Information Booklet Exhibit Volume or the Questions and Answers or have
any questions or need assistance, please call our Reorganization Information Line at 1-800-
315-9781.

We value the confidence you have placed in Union Central, and we look forward to
continuing to serve your financial needs in the future.

Sincerely,

John H. Jacobs _
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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L YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT
UmionCentral YOU MAY VOTE BY

Proxy for Rescheduled Special Meeting

INTERNET / TELEPHONE / MAIL

24 HOURS A DAY /7 DAYS A WEEK

" ase read the enclosed Supplement to the Policyholder Information Booklet, the Policyholder Information Booklet, the Policyholder
—_~rmation Booklet Exhibit Volume, and Questions and Answers to learn more about the Proposal (set forth below). Union Central
Palicyholders who are eligible to vote can vote “FOR” or “AGAINST” the Proposal in any of the following ways:

Mail: by completing the proxy card below and returning it
via mail in the postage-paid return envelope provided. If
there is more than one policyholder, then all policyholders
must sign this proxy card.

Telephone: by calling 1-800-318-2767 and following the
recorded instructions. Your telephone vote authorizes the
named proxies to vote in the same manner as if you
marked, signed and returned the proxy card.

Please note: Only proxy card votes that are made on
blue-striped proxies such as the one below or votes cast
by Internet or telephone with control numbers from such
blue-striped proxies will be counted. Accordingly, if you have
already submitted a proxy card or voted by Internet or tele-
phone, you must vote again or your vote will not be counted.

OR

OR

Internet: by going to hitp:/www.dfking.com/unioncentral
and following the instructions that appear on your
computer screen. Your Internet vote authorizes the
named proxies to vote in the same manner as if you
marked, signed and returned the proxy card.

In person; by attending the Rescheduled Special Meeting
of Union Central Policyholders to be held at 10:00 am.
Eastern Time, on September 30, 2005 at Union Central's
home office located at 1876 Waycross Road, Cincinnati,
Ohio 45240.

if you are voting by proxy and the envelope is damaged or missing, please mail your proxy to: D.F. King & Co., Inc.,
Wall Street Station, P.O. Box 1163, New York, NY 10269-0013. if you have submitted your proxy by telephone or the
Internet, or plan to attend and vote in person at the special meeting, there is no need for you to mall your proxy card.

¥  DETACH PROXY CARD HERE IF YOU ARE NOT VOTING BY TELEPHONE, INTERNET OR IN PERSON V¥

W
winonCentral

Proxy for Rescheduled Special Meeting

Proposal:

Please Vote, Sign, Date
and Return Promptly in

the Enclosed Envelope. Votes MUST be indicated

(x) in black or blue ink.

To approve the Plan of Reorganization (the “Plan”) of The Union Central Life Insurance Company (“Union Central”) pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 3913.25 through 3913.38 of the Ohio Revised Code and the transactions contemplated by the Plan, including the formation of Union Central Mutual
Holding Company (“UCMHC”) as a mutual insurance holding company, the conversion of Union Central from an Ohio mutual lite insurance company to an
Ohio stock life insurance company, which will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of UCMHG, the adoption of the Amended and Restated Anticles of
Incorporation and Code of Regulations of Union Central as a stock life insurance company, the merger of UCMHC with and into Ameritas Acacia Mutual
Holding Company (which wilt be renamed UNIFI Mutual Helding Company) and the designation of the Union Central designees to initially serve as directors
of UNIFI Mutual Holding Company and their initial terms of office, all as more fully described in the Policyholder Information Booklet previously provided o

you and the accompanying Supplement to the Policyholder Information Booklet.

FORTHE PROPOSAL

AGAINST THE PROPOSAL

SIGNATURE OF POLICYHOLDER

DATE SIGNED

SIGNATURE OF CO-OWNER(S) (if applicable)

-

DATE SIGNED

(Plaase see the back of this card jor additional information reganding your (i) appoirimaent of
persons 1o vole on your behaif in the manner you indicate on this proxy card and (i) nght to
withhold your authority 10 vote for approval of one or more of the designated UNIF| directors.)



PROXY FOR RESCHEDULED SPECIAL MEETING
[Reverse side of card]

| hereby constitute and appoint Michael 8. Cambron, Richard H. Finan and John H. Jacobs, and each of them individually,
to be my proxies, with full power of substitution, at the rescheduled special meeting of Policyholders of The Union Central
Life Insurance Company to be held on September 30, 2005, and all adjournments thereof, to vote on my behalf on the
Proposal set forth on the opposite side of this card and described in the Notice of Rescheduled Special Meeting of Union
Central Policyholders, dated August 22, 2005, in accordance with the direction set forth on the opposite side of this card.

To withhoid authority to vote for one or more of the Union Central designees to the Board of Directors of UNIFI Mutual
Holding Company (such designees are identified in the Policyholder Information Booklet under the caption “Initial UNIFI
Board of Directors” beginning at page 53), write the name or names of such designees below:







“r The Union Central

Life Insurance Company

UnionCentral 1876 Waycross Road
Cincinnati, OH 45240
(800) 825 1551

Insurance and Investments

August 22, 2005
Dear Policyholder:

Enclosed are materials supplementing the documents you previously received in connection with our
proposal to reorganize and become part of what will become the UNIFI Mutual Holding Company
group. Since the Special Meeting of Policyholders, originally scheduled for September 1, 2005, has
been rescheduled to September 30, 2005, our records indicate that you now meet the voting eligibility
requirements under Ohio law to vote on the proposal at the Rescheduled Special Meeting.

You may attend the Rescheduled Special Meeting in person or submit your vote by proxy in any of the
following ways: returning the enclosed blue-striped proxy card in the enclosed return envelope, voting
by Internet or voting by telephone. For more details on how to vote, please see the Questions and
Answers included with the Policyholder Information Booklet previously mailed to you and voting
instructions appearing on the enclosed blue-striped proxy card. For the Plan to be approved, we must
have the support of a majority of the votes cast by eligible Union Central Policyholders voting in
person or by proxy at the Rescheduled Special Meeting.

If you do not plan to vote in person at the Rescheduled Special Meeting, it is important that you
vote by using the enclosed blue-striped proxy card or by phone or Internet. Instructions on how to
vote by phone or Internet appear on the enclosed blue-striped proxy card. Proxies sent by mail must be
received by 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, on September 29, 2005. Your prompt cooperation will be greatly
appreciated.

The reorganization, Union Central, Ameritas Acacia and voting procedures are all described more
fully in the enclosed Union Central President’s Letter, Supplement to the Policyholder Information
Booklet and proxy card, as well as in the documents you previously received, including the Questions
and Answers, the Policyholder Information Booklet and Exhibits to the Policyholder Information
Booklet, all of which we urge you to read carefully. If you require another copy of any of the
materials that were previously sent to you or have any questions or need assistance, please call
our Reorganization Information Line at 1-800-315-9781.

Securities products offered through Carillon Investments, Inc.,
a subsidiary of The Union Central Life Insurance Company,
1876 Waycross Road, Cincinnati, Chio 45240. (800) 999-1840.



1] The Union Central

Life Insurance Company
Cincinnati, OH 45240
(800) 825 1551

Insurance and Investments

August 22, 2005
Dear Policyholder:

We thank you for your recent decision to purchase a policy from us and we welcome you as a new
member of The Union Central Life Insurance Company. The Union Central Life Insurance Company
is proposing to reorganize and become part of what will become the UNIFI Mutual Holding Company
group as described in the enclosed materials. We are sending you these materials for informational
purposes only. Union Central Policyholders who, on the basis of the records of Union Central, meet
certain voting eligibility requirements under Ohio law are being asked to vote on the proposal at the
Special Meeting of Policyholders. We are not asking you to vote because at this time you, as a recent
member, do not meet the voting eligibility requirements, which are described below:

» the policyholder must be the owner of a life insurance or disability policy with a coverage
(or annual benefit in the case of a disability policy) of at least $1,000; or

+ the policyholder must be the owner of an annuity contract (or a certificate holder of certain
group retirement annuity contracts) or pure endowment contract that requires the payment
of $100 or more annually; and

* in cither case, the insurance policy or annuity contract must be in force and must have
been in force since September 30, 2004.

The reorganization will not reduce the benefits, values, guarantees or other terms of your Union
Central policies or contracts and it will not change your premium. Also, policy dividends will
continue to be paid as declared by the Board of Directors of Union Central in accordance with the
same principles and policies in place prior to the reorganization. The reorganization, Union Central
and Ameritas Acacia are ail described more fully in the Questions and Answers that follow and in the
enclosed Policyholder Information Booklet and related Exhibit Volume, which we urge you to read
carefully.

If you have any questions, please call our Reorganization Information Line at 1-800-315-9781.

Securities products offered through Carillon Investments, Inc.,
a subsidiary of The Union Central Life Insurance Company,
1876 Waycross Road, Cimcinnati, Ohio 45240, (800) 999-1840.



1] The Union Central

Life Insurance Company

mm 1876 Waycross Road
Cincinnati, OH 45240
(800) 825 1551

Insurance and Investments

August 22, 2005
Dear Policyholder:

Enclosed are materials supplementing the documents you previously received in connection with our
proposal to reorganize and become part of what will become the UNIFI Mutual Holding Company
group. As before, we are sending you these materials for informational purposes only as you do not
meet the voting eligibility requirements, which are described below:

*  the policyholder must be the owner of a life insurance or disability policy with a coverage
{or annual benefit in the case of a disability policy) of at least $1,000; or

+ the policyholder must be the owner of an annuity contract (or a certificate holder of certain
group retirement annuity contracts) or pure endowment contract that requires the payment
of $100 or more annually; and

* in either case, the insurance policy or annuity contract must be in force and must have
been in force since September 30, 2004,

The changes described in the enclosed supplemental materials do not change the terms or effects of the
proposed reorganization as described in the documents you previously received from us.

If you have any questions, please call our Reorganization Information Line at 1-800-315-9781.

Securities products offered through Carillon Investments, Inc.,
a subsidiary of The Union Central Life [nsurance Company,
1876 Waycross Road, Cincinnati, Ohio 45240, (800) 999-1840.



W The Union Central

UnionCentzal 1976 Weyeross Road.

n 1876 Waycross Road
Cineinnati, OH 45240
(B00) 825 1551

Insurance and Investments

Aupgust 22, 2005
Dear Policyholder:

As you know, The Union Central Life Insurance Company is proposing to reorganize and become
part of what will become the UNIFI Mutual Holding Company group. Our records indicate that you
have recently decided to terminate a policy with us and do not have any other policy making you
eligible to vote at the Special Meeting of Policyholders which was originally scheduled for September
1, 2005 but has been recently rescheduled to September 30, 2005. If you have already voted by proxy
card, Internet or telephone, your vote will not be counted.

We are very excited about the potential benefits we hope to achieve in the reorganization. We regret
that you have terminated a policy with our company but hope that you will consider us or any of the
other UNIFI companies to serve your financial needs in the future.

Securities products offered through Carillon Investments, Inc.,
a subsidiary of The Union Ceniral Life Insurance Company,
1876 Waycross Road, Cincinnati, Ohio 45240. (800) 999-1840.



